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Songbird Estates plc

Highlights

® The market valug of the property portfolio at 31 December 2007 was £7 274 3m against £7,465 Om at 30 June 2007
and £6,737 4m at 31 December 2008, a reducton of 4 3% compared with 30 June 2007 (after additicns in the
period) but an Increase of 4 8% compared with 31 December 2006 (Note (1))

® Net assets fell from £2,380 1m at 31 December 2006 to £2,347 7m at 31 December 2007, a reduction of £32 4m or
1 4% (Note (n)}, after dividends to equity shareholders of £319 7m

® Net assets fell by £272 6m or 10 4% from £2,620 3m at 30 June 2007 {Note (n}) as a result of a fall in the value of the
property portfolio

® Adjusted net asset value per share reduced by 18 6% from £2 64 at 31 December 2006 to £2 15 n ihe year (Note
{u}} following the payment of dwvidends

® Adjusted net asset value per share reduced by 34p (13 7%) from £2 49 at 30 June 2007 (Note (m}) due to the fall in
the value of the property portfolic

® Refinancing of the companys loan facility completed raising initial net proceeds of £279 1m at lower margins
(Note ()}

® Dividends paid during 2007 totaling 70 Sp per share (Note {v))

® |n 2007 transactions over 755,000 sa ft were achieved, including an agreement for sale upon completion of a new
320,000 sq ft building to Fimalac (Note (wi))

® At 31 December 2007 Canary Wharf Group’s investment portfolio totaling 7 9m sq ft was 99 6% let (31 December
2006 - 7 9m sq ft of which 95 6% was iet) The weighted average unexpired lease term was approximately 18 7 years
(or 15 8 years assuming exercise of break options) (Note (vi))

® Heads of terms agreed for the design build, financing and leasing of the Crossrall station at Canary Wharf (Note (vin))

® 132m sg ft 1s under construction, of which 102m sq ft has been pre-sold and 86 0% of the remamder has been
pre-let (Note (vi))

¢ Redevelopment of Cabot Place Retal Mall completed Infrastructure work under way on Riverside South (1 9m sq ft
of potential development) and phased development has commenced at 25 Churchill Place {350,000 sq fi of potential
development) (Note (vi))

® InJune 2007 Canary Wharf Group entered into a joint venture for the redevelopment of Drapers Gardens (Note (vi)

Note

{1} See Business Review — Valuations for a companson with the carrying vakse for accounts purposes
{n) See Nole 4 of the Notes 1o the conscldaled inancral statements for further deials

{m) See Business Review — Balance sheet and key performance indicators’ for further detals

(v} See Business Review - Borrowings for further detals

{v) See Note 24 of the Notes 1o the consoldated Tinancial statements

() See Business Rewview — Leasing for turther datalls

(vi) See 'Business Review - Property portfolio for further details

{vin) See Business Review — Construction for further details
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Results in Brief

Songbird Estates plc

2007 2006
Note £m £m
Rental iIncome (1) 2753 2557
Underlying operating profit () 3403 2458
Capital and other 1tems
— other income {mn 192 -
—net revaluation gains {In) 1104 722 1
- financing (costs)/income relating to derivatives (v) (35 5) 191
- refinancing {charges)/gains relating to repayment of debt (V) (14 3) 1233
Taxation — deferred tax (V) 238 (179 1)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation {1} 182 0 884 1
Profit after tax (i) 2058 7050
Basic and diluled earnings per share i) 223p 92 3p
Lividends per share (viry 70 5p 18 Op
Note
{1} See Nole 5 ol the Notes to the consolidated financial statements
{1) See Conschitated Income Statermnent
{1} See Note 6 of the Notes to the consalidated fimancial statements
{iv) See Note 7 of the Noles to the consolidated financial stalements
{v) Sese Note 8 of the Notes to lhe consolidated financial statements
(v1) See Note 4 of the Notes 1o the consolidated financial statements
(vi) See Nale 24 of the Notes 1o the consolidated financial statementis
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Songbird Estates plc

Chairman’s Statement

Progress by Canary Wharf Group which 1s the core
operating subsidiary of the group, continued throughout
2007 Canary Wharf Group concluded 755,000 sq ft of
transactions which included the pre-sale of a new London
headguarters bullding for Fitch Construction also
coniinued on 1 32m sq ft of office space on the Estate and
infrastructure works commenced on a further 23m sq fi
Coupled with the expansion of the Canary Wharf Group
business nto the City of London through the
redevelopment of Drapers Gardens, ail of this activity 15 a
clear indication of the ability of Canary Wharf Group to
support development both on and off the Estate At the
company level we have refinanced our debt, made two
dividend payments and completed a capital restructuring,
which removed the D Share dividend hability

Weakness in global financial markets has forced a
siowdown in activity in the UK commercial property market
which has been reflected in a softenng of real estate
values The groups property portfollo has not been
immune but the hugh quahty of our real estate assets long
average length of unexprrad leases (187 years before
breaks) and low vacancy rates 1s reflected n a 4 8%
(excluding adaitrons) valuation inciease over the year,
notwithstanding a 4 3% decrease 0 the latter haf

OQUTLOOK

The challenging market condittons experienced In ihe
second half of 2007 have continued nto the first three
months of 2008 but the high qualty of our assets, the low
levet of vacancy and focus on active asset management
mean we look to the future with confidence

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financials

The results for the year ended 31 December 2007
represent the group's first full year of results presented in
accordance with IFRS Comparatives for the year ended
31 December 2006 previously presented in accordance
with UK GAAP, have been restated to comply with IFRS

Net assets at 31 December 2007 were down over the year
to £2,347 7m, reflecting the payment of two dwvidends
totalling £3197m This served to offset the upward
revaluation of the group’s properties held as non curreni
assets by £133 2m and the underlying profit before tax for
the year of £102 2m In comparnson with 30 June 2007 the
carrying value of such properties fell by 43% 10
£6,570 7m Whilst the property portfolio was impacted by
the increase in yields experienced across the market in the
second half of the year, this was mitigated by new lettings,
growth In rents and expansion of retait on the Estale

Adjusted net asset value per share reduced during the
year from £2 64 to £2 15 at 31 December 2007 Adjusted

net asset value includes the revaluation surplus on
construction contracts but excludes deferred tax and far
value adjustments on dernvative financial instruments and
treats the SG Shares as equity The external revaluation
surplus on all properties for the year as a whole, which
amounted to 21 1p per share excluding the munonty
Interest, was offset by the dwvidends of 70 5p per share
paid duning the year and the issue of B Shares to BL as
ouilned below

Rental income for the year increased by 7 7% to £275 3m
reflecting the increased occupancy on the Estate and the
upliits achieved on review The undertying profit before
taxation for 2007 of £102 2m compares with £19 6m for the
previous year, the increase being largely atinbutable to the
profiis achieved on pre-sold properties of £89 1m Total
profii before tax for the year, which in accordance with IFRS
included the surplus on revaluation of mvestment
properties, was £182 Om in comparison with £884 1m for
the previous year

Refinancing

in the first half of 2007 we concluded a restructunng and
refinancing exercise which resulted i the replacement of
the exisung financing arrangements The new £880 0m
three year term and revoiving facilities have lower margins
which range from 120 bps to 170 bps over LIBOR
depending on the financial posimon of the Canary Wharf
Group The new facilites provide an increased draw down
faciity for the group and greater flexibility on dividend
payments, which are obwviously dependent on sufficient
cash flows, reserves and the general business needs of
the group The restructuring also introduced a new wholly
owned subsidiary of the company, SFL., which acquired the
miterests of the company and SAL in the shares of Canary
Wharf Group The introduction of this new holding
company has enabled the company to refine the group
structure by amalgamating the entire Canary Wharf Group
interest INto one intermediate holding company

Dividends and Restructuring

In February 2007 the company completed a share capital
restructuring removing all past and future D Share dividend
habilities i consideration for the issue of 14,478,260 B
Shares to BL, the D shareholder At the same time, the
company paid 2 dividend of 28 5p per A, B and SG Share
Following the refinancing i April 2007 {as mentioned
above) the company declared a further dividend of 41 C0p
per A, B and SG Share which was paid on 18 June 2007
A regular dvidend policy has not been adopted by the
company as ihe board feeis 1t 1s in the best interests of the
company as a whole to maintan a position whereby 1t can
review and consider the general business needs of the
group on a case by case basis when considering future
dividend payments Canary Wharf Group has declared the
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payment of an intenm dividend of 16p per ordinary share
payable on 9 Apnl 2008 of which £62 2m will be receivable
by SFL Beanng in mind the pravious sentiments, there s
no current intention for a dividend payment by the
company

RECENT LETTING AND SALE ACTIVITY

Progress continued during 2007 on achieving the strategy
of the group with the pre-sale to Fimalac of a new Londen
headquarters for Fitch which will comprise 320,000 sq fi of
office accommodation Leitings over 435,000 sq it were
also agreed on the Estate during the year, which included
the letting of 301,575 sq ft tc Barclays Capital, an existing
tenant

Subseqguent to the year end, over 200,000 sq fi of letings
werg agreed of which 170,000 sq ft of space, primarly
surrendered by the Telegraph Media Group in One
Canada Square, was fet to Moody’s at a rent of £45 50 per
sqg ft This latest transaclion suggests rental rates are
holding up on the Estate despite the turmoit in the financial
markets The most recent lettings have brought further new
tenants 1o the Estate, such as Moody's and Abbey
Business Cenires, as well as extending existing
relationships  Despite the recent challenging market
conditions, the rents achieved on these lettngs ranging
from £45 50 to £49 00 per sq fi, are positive and reflect the
high qualty of the Canary Wharf Group property portfolio

Foliowing the latest transactions, the vacancy rate for
Canary Wharf Group 15 down 1o G 4%, with the overall
vacancy rate on the Estate at approximately 2 5% Recent
developments (n the financial markets have obviously
caused nervousness In the leasing market as a whole
However, the group remains positive with the protection of
high occupancy on the Estate and the strong tenant
covenants in place

DEVELOPMENT

As previously mentioned 1 32m sq ft of construction I1s
currently underway on four buldings on the Estate with
completion due on all by 2010, including construction of
the bulding at 5 Churchill Place for Bear Stearns who are
in the process of being acquired by JP Morgan Chase,
which 15 continuing to the onginal tmetable In additon,
infrastructure works have also commenced on a 350,000
sq it bulding at 25 Churchill Place and on the 1 9m sq ft
Riverside South development The revised planning
application for Riverside South which 1s 1n line with the
Mayor of Londons sustainability requirements and meets
new market demands, has been approved by LBTH In
Iight of the current market conditions Canary Wharf Group
has stated that it will not pursue speculative development
in the absence of a pre-let or pre-sale, and therefore these
infrastructure works will only continue up 10 ground fevel

Songbird Estates plc

Consent has also been obtained for increased density of
24m sq ft of office and retal space at North Quay
However, construction cannot commence until completion
of the Canary Wharf Crossrail station, which obtained initial
agreement 10 proceed in lale 2007 and s currently
awaiting parlamentary approval and Royal Assent for the
Crossrall project Crossrall will form an important part of
Londons future infrastructure and future prospenty The
Canary Wharf Group will construct the new Crossral
station (adjacent to the North Quay site) on the Estate and
negotiations have already commenced on the detail of the
project It 1s Canary Wharf Group policy to continuously
look at sustainability in both construction and occupancy

In addition to continuing development on the Estate, 2007
saw continued focus by Canary Wharf Group on new
projects 1n Central London it 1s a natural extension of tha
Canary Wharf Group skill and expertise to expand
operations off the Eslaie The provision of management
services on the Ballymore Millharbour and Crossharbour
projects 15 continuing and the development of the Wood
Wharf site, where Canary Wharf Group 1s managing the
process through the planning application stage, 18
progressing well A draft planning application was lodged
for Woed Wharf with LBTH 1n early 2008 for review and
comment In June 2007 Canary Wharf Group entered into
a Jjoint venture arrangement for the redevelopment of
Drapers Gardens which 1S expected 10 complete In
Autumn 2008 In addition to managing the construction of
this project, Canary Wharf Group has also taken a 20 0%
equity stake in the companies that own the properties
Canary Whart Group continues 10 look at projecis ouiside
of the Estate where value can be added

RETAIL

Following the successes In 2006, retal on the Estaie
continued to grow with turnover up 8 5% in 2007 despite a
difficult market Certain prime retall rents on the Estate
have Iincreased by up to 100% on reviews completed
during 2007 The redeveloped Cabot Place Retall Mall
opened on 13 March 2008 increasing the Cahbot Place
retall area by approximately 400% Thus redevelopment
has brought new well known retall tenants to the Estate,
such as Zara, Massimo Duth, River Island and Leon, to
name but a few Due to the success of the retall to date,
Canary Wharf Group 1s currenily loaking to extend further
with planning applications approved, subject to conditions,
for three retal extensions pnmanty inked 1o One Canada
Square and the existng Churchill Place retarl area Upon
completion, these extensions will increase the retall areas
on the Estate by a further 37,450 sa ft All of the above
reflect the high demand for relail space on the Estate,
which at 740,000 sqg ft 15 already the second largest
shopping centre within the M25
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Songbird Estates plc

Chairman’s Statement contnued

CONCLUSION

This overview of the business of the group I1s a clear
indication of the pragress made during 2007 i line with the
strategy of the group The company will continue 1o
evaluate further opporturuties through the application of the
skills and experlise of the Canary Wharf Group team both
on the Estate and in Central Londen

Finally, as announced at the time, we have had a number
of changes to the board during the year with Brian Niles
and Tim Roberts being appointed directors to replace Bob
Gray and Eugene Doyle respectvely On behalf of my
fellow direciors | would Ike to take this opportunity to thank
both Eugene and Bob for therr contnbution and support
during ther tme on the board

DAVID PRITCHARD
Chairman
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Business Review

A hist of defined terms used throughout these financial
statements 1s provided In 'Definitions’

PROPERTY PORTFOLIO

The principal asset of the company 1s its indirect
investment in Canary Wnarf Group which 18 engaged In
property Investment and property development The
activities of Canary Wharf Group are currently focused on
the development of the Estate Canary Wharf Group 15 also
engaged in development, through joint ventures, of Wood

Sengbird Estates plc

‘Wharf and Drapers Gardens Ai 31 December 2007
Canary Whar{ Groups investment portfolio comprised 16
completed properties (out of the 30 constructed on the
Estate) totaling 7 9m sq ft NIA, of which 99 6% was (et
(31 December 2006 ~ 7 9m sq ft of which 95 8% was let)
As well as the rental Income generated from properties,
income 1§ generated from managing the entire Estate
which In addition to the completed properties owned by
Canary Wharf Group, includes a further 14 properties
totaling 6 3m sq it which are in other owngrships

NIA Leased External valuation
Property address sq ft % £m Principal tenants
One Churchill Place 1,014,400 1000 800C¢  Barclays, BGC, LOCOG
10 Cabot Square 639 000 1000 3320 Barclays Capital, WPP Group
20 Cabot Square 562,000 1000 2500 Morgan Stanley, Barclays Capiial
Cne Canada Square 1,236,200 ) 290 8737 KPMG, Mirror Group Newspapers
State Street, Bear Stearns Bank of
New York
33 Canada Square 562 700 1000 4250 Ciigroup
20 Bank Street 546,500 1000 5000 Mcrgan Stanley
25-30 Bank Street 1,023,300 98 9 9550 Lehman Brothers
40 Bank Street 607,400 969 4725 Barclays Capral Skadden, Allen &
Overy, BGC, ANZ
50 Bank Street 209,800 1000 167 5 Northern Trust, Goldenberg Hehmeyer
10 Upper Bank Street 1,000,400 100 0 8500 Chfford Chance Infosys, FTSE, Total
Cabot Place Retail 95,700 1000 166 0 Vanous retall tenants
Canada Place Retal 72,200 1000 1750 Various retall tenants
Jubilee Piace Retall 89 400 1000 106 1 Varous retall lenants
Churchill Place Retail 22,400 1000 59 Barclays Bank and vanous retal
fenants
16 -19 Canada Sguare 204,500 100 0 578 Waitrose Food & Home, Reebok,
Plateau Restaurant
Reuters Plaza 8 900 1000 119 Smollenskys, Carluccios
Car Parks - - 629
7,894,800 996 62113
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Business Review contnued

Canary Wharf Group's properties are under lease 1o high
quality tenants which provide a diversified ncome stream
At 31 December 2007 the weighted average unexpired
lease term for the office portiolio was zpproximately 187
years or 15 8 years assuming the exercise of outstanding
break options (31 December 2006 — 198 years or 17 1
years assuming the exercise of break options) Of the
square footage under lease, 68 6% does not expire or
cannot be terminated by tenants during the next ten years

LEASING

Dunng 2007 Canary Wharf Group announced transactions
over a total of 755 000 sq ft, including letungs totalling
approximately 435,000 sq ft The lettings concluded during
the year comprised the following

¢ Barclays Capital agreed to lease a total of 301 575 sq ft
in 40 Bank Street on three separate leases expiring n
Apnl 2023 Barclays Capuital will take up the space on a
phased basis over the next year at rents ranging from
£44 00 per sq ft to £47 50 per sq ft In addibon Damac
Properties and Mirae Asset Global [nvestment
Management took a total of 11,485 sq ft in this building
for terms of 5 and 10 vears respectively

* Bear Stearns took a further 28,780 sq ft n One Canada
Square for a 5 year term with break options to coincide
with the completion of their new headquarters bullding
at b Churchill Place Bear Stearns also exercised an
option over approximately 52,600 sg ft in 5 Churchill
Place taking ther total contractual commitment to
approximately 259,000 sq ft

CONSTRUCTION

* |n One Canada Square, Michagl Page ook 6,548 sq ft
for a 5 year term, Bank of New York renewed a lease
of 6,463 sq ft for one year and Prmus
Telecommunications exercised a break over 8,800 sq ft
In December 2007 Canary Wharf Group took a
surrender of 27,231 sq ft on the 18th floor from Mirrar
Group Newspapers and simultansously re-let the
space 1o the Financial Services Authority for a term of
10 years Subseguent to the year end Canary Wharf
Group announced that it had entered Into an
agreement for lease with Moodys, the international
credit rating agency, for approximately 170,000 sq ft on
a 15 year lease which includes space formerly
occupled by the Telegraph Media Group on floars
11-16 The group also took a surrender of the 37th floor
(28,435 sqg ft) from Burlington Resources and re-let the
space to Abbey Busmess Centres for a term of 156
years The rents achieved on these recent letings have
been In the range of £45 50 to £49 Q0 per sq ft

As a result of these lettings, vacancy on the Estate in the
completed buikings owned by Canary Wharf Group
reduced to 0 4%

All space praviously sub-let back to Canary Whari Group
has now been re-let or 1s subject to call optons At
31 December 2007 the estimated net present value of the
remaining sub-let latlites had reduced to approximately
£30 0m discounted ai 6 1%, Canary Wharf Groups
waighted average cost of debt at that date (31 Dacember
2006 — £43 8m discounted ai 6 1%) The remamning sub-
let commitmenis have been reflecied n the market
valuation of Canary Whari Group's properties

The following properties were under construction at 31 December 2007

NIA Expeciled

Property address sg completion date Status

20 Churchill Place 300,000 October 2008 Pre-sold io Prudential for occupation by
State Street on completion

15 Canada Square 400,000 April 2009 Pre-sold to KPMG

5 Churchill Place 300,000 May 2009 259,000 sq ft pre-let to Bear Stearns

30 North Colonnade 320,000 October 2010 Pre-sold to Fimalac for occupation by Fitch
on completion

1,320,000
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On 29 June 2007 Canary Wharf Group agreed terms with
Fimalac for the sale and an agreement for the
construction, of a new £290 Om headguarters for Fitch The
new building under construction at 30 North Colonnade will
comprise approxsmately 320,000 sq ft and s scheduled
for completion in the second hali of 2010 On exchange,
Canary Wharf Group received an wnitial payment of
£165 4m from Fimalac in respect of the site

In addiion to the construction of new office buldings,
Canary Wharf Group has redeveloped the western end of
the Cabot Place Retai Mall, with practical completion
achieved in March 2008 This redevelopment has
increased the existng retail area by approximately
38,500 sq ft (approximately 7 3%} and has introduced new
retailers to the Estate including Zara River [sland and Leon

The remaining development site on the Estale at BP4
could accommodate approximately 04m sq ft of new
development Following the sale of 30 North Colonnade to
Fimalac, Canary Wharf Group has decided to proceed with
the staged construction of BP4 In addition, Canary Wharf
Group has development sites at North Quay and Riverside
South At Riverside South a revised planning consent In
respect of 1.9m sq ft was agreed and imitial ground works
are under way which will accelerate the completion 1me faor
the development for any prospective occupant At North
Cuay the local authonty granted consent for an increase In
the permitied density to 24m sq ft, and there 1s further
development capacity at Heron Quays West

Canary Wharf Group entered into an option deed with BWB
in November 2007 which allows the group to elect for the
draw down: of a 999 year lease of addional land south of
Heron Quays West The option deed 1s for a period of 5
vears from November 2007 An initia! option payment of
£2 25m was made and 1s followed by annual payments of
£250 000 on each anniversary of the option deed If the
group exercises the option BWB has the nght to receive a
fixed stream of rental payments throughout the duravon of
the lease or to commute the rental paymenis into a capital
sum payable on the fifth anniversary of the option deed
Subsequent to the option deed, an application was made
to increase the permitied density at Heron Quays West to
125m sqg ft Construction of new buldings on this and
other siies will commence as and when market conditions
allow

In October 2007 Canary Wharf Group signed heads of
terms 0 relation to the Crossral development with the
Secretary of State for Transport The Government

Songhbird Estates plc

subsequently announced its commitment to the Crossrail
project, subject to parhamentary approval and Royal
Assent Under the agreement Canary Wharf Group will
design build and finance censtruction of a statien on the
Estate and on completion, lease the staton to TFL R s
antcipated that construction will be iunded by way of a
construction facility in comunction with an equity
contribution from Canary Wharf Group Subject to
planning, Canary Wharf Group will be granted the nght to
develop a retall complex above the station Royal Assent 1s
expecied in July 2008

The development capacity at each of the previously
mentioned sites I1s as follows

NIA
m sq ft
Based on existing planning permissions
- BP4 04
— Rwerside South 19
— North Quay 24
47
Subject to planning apphcation
— Heron Quays West 13
Total 60

In addition to the above, Canary Wharf Group 1s working
with Ballymore and BWB on the redevelopment of the
Wood Wharf site The mastar plan for the scheme, in which
Canary Wharf Group has a 250% mntergst, sets a
framework for 6 5m sq ft gross of mixed commercial,
residential and retall development An iniial planning
application was submitted In January 2008

On 15 June 2007 Canary Wharf Group announced a joint
venture with MSREF V and Exemplar to undertake the
redevelopment of [Drapers Gardens The scheme
comprises approximately 300,000 sg ft of prime
commercial development and 1s scheduled for completion
in the autumn of 2009 Canary Wharf Group acquired
20 0% of the share capital in the companies ihat own the
properties and has assumed the role of development
manager with day to day running of the scheme This
represents Canary Wharl Group's first involvement in a
scheme away from the Estate and, coupled with
nvolvement as construction manager on Ballymores
Crossharbour and Millharbour  developments,
demonstrates that the skills of Canary Wharf Group are
transferable to other developments away from the Estate

2007 Report & Financial Statements 9
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Business Review coninued

VALUATIONS

The net assets of the group, as stated in its consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 December 2007 were £2 347 7m
tn arnving at this total

() properties held as Invesimenis were carried at
£6,019 4m which represents the market value of those
properties of £6 211 3m at that date as determined by
Canary Wharf Group’s external valuers, CBRE, Savills
or Cushman, less an adjustment ot £186 5m for tenant
incentives and £5 4m for deferred negotiation costs,

{1} properties held for development were carred at
£452 0m, representing therr market value, and

{m) properties under construction 1o be retained by Canary
Wharf Group were carried at £99 3m, representing therr
market value less an adjustment of £0 7m for deferred
negotiation costs

Excluding additions, the wvaluation of the investment
portioho on the basis of market value increased by
£1362m or 22% dunng 2007 After allowing for
adjustments 1n respect of lease ncentives, the carrying
value of the investment portfolio increased by £110 4m
over the year This increase was prnmarly drven by the
benefit of new lettings which was partially ofiset by the
softening n yields n the market In comparnson with
30 June 2007, the valuation of the portfoho n the second
half of the year reduced by £270 8m or 4 2% as a resull of
an increase In yietds The group 18 of the view thal the low
vacancy rate on the Estate and the long average unexpired
lease term puts the group i & strong position to weather
the more uncertain ecoenomic outlook

CBRE and Savills have provided a joint opinion as at
31 December 2007 that the market value of properties held
for development was £452 Om, In companson with

£4150m at 31 December 20068 which resulted n a
revaluation increase of £89m n the penod, net of
additions tn valuing the preperties held for development,
the vaiuers have allowed for estmated costs to complete,
including an altowance for ftout In addiion they have
allowed for letting, disposal, marketing and financing
costs The market value of £452 Om represents a reduction
of 15 1%, excluding addions since 30 June 2007, which
reflects a more uncertain outlook for development In the
second half of the year

The valuers also provided an opinton at 31 December 2007
that the market value of the property under construction to
be retaned was £1000m which, after transfers to
properties under construction and held for sale, resulted in
a revaluation surplus of £13 9m in the year The properiies
under construction held for sale had a market value of
£5110m compared with a carrying value of £255.2m
before the transfers required by |AS 11

The market value of the entire property portiolio ircluding
Investment properties, properties held for development
and properties under constructon, ncreased by £330 3m
or 4 8% over the year, excluding addiwons For the six
months ended 31 December 2007 the portfolio reduced in
value by £3235m, or 4 3%, excluding additions and
transfers As noted earlier, this reduction in value has been
driven by the softening in yields in the secona half of the
year

A number of properties are subject to leases back to
Canary Wharf Group These have been taken intc account
in the valuations summarnsed in the table overteaf which
shows the carrying value of Canary Wharf Group's
properties for accounts purposes in companson with the
supplementary valuations provided by the external
valuers
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31 December 2007

Songbird Estates plc

30 June 2007 31 December 2006

Market Markel Market
value In value in value in
Carrying existing Carrying existing Carrying existng
value state value state value state
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Investment properlies 6,019 4 6,211 39 6,288 6" 8,470 6= 5,895 gv 6 058 4@
Properties under construction 993 100 0@ 64 3 65 0 94 3 9507
Properties held for development 452 0 4520 5110 5110 414 9 4150
6,5707 6,763 3 6,863 9 7,046 6 6,404 8 6,568 4
Properties under construction
held for sale 265 20 5110 181 ¥ 418 4 84 6" 168 0
6,8259 72743 70450 7,465 0 6,489 4 6,737 4

Mote

(1) The carrying value ol invesiment properties represents mart el vatue less an adjusiment for lease incentives and deferred negoliation costs

{2) Stated &t market value in exising state before adjusiment for tenant incentives ana deferred negotiation costs The tenant incentives and deferred
negotiaton costs adjustment attnbutable to invesiment properties at 31 December 2007 was £181 9m (31 Decernber 2006 - £162 8m)

(3) The carrying value in the balance sheet at 31 December 2007 1s stated net of £225 7m transierred io cost of sales (30 June 2007 - £179 8m
31 December 2006 - £76 4m) £29 5m lzanslerred 1o paymenis on account {30 June 2607 - £9 4m, 31 December 2006 - £8 2m) and cosis accrued
ol tnil (30 June 2007 - €8 1m 31 December 2006 - £n1l} in accordance with 1AS 11

TAXATION

Canary Wharf Group has EZAs available 10 shelter future
operating profits 1axable profits and gans ansing on the
sale of properties

Substantially all E2ZAs avadable to Canary Wharf Group in
future periods are attached to assets that are now of
neglgible market value following an internal property
restructuring in the year ended 31 December 2005 As a
result there 1s no uplift in the vatue of the group s Investment
properties attributable to the EZAs avallable to the group
Whereas Canary Wharf Group can clam these EZAs
based on the original gualifying expenditure, a third party
purchaser would only be able to clam EZAs by reference
1o the post restructuning values Furthermore, as these
assets to which the EZAs attach are neghgible in value, a
disposal of the property to which the qualifying expenditure
relates would not result In a matenal clawback of EZAs
claimed pnor to 31 December 2007 As a resuli there 1s no
deferred tax lability recognised n respect of such claims

The contingent tax payable if Canary Wharf Group was o
dispose of its owned property portfolio at the market values
disclosed In this Business Review 1S included in the net
ceferred tax provision recognised for IFRS purposes at
each balance sheet date (Note 8)

OPERATING RESULTS

The following review of the group's operaung resulis relates
t0 the year ended 31 December 2007 The comparatives
relate 10 the year ended 31 December 2006

Revenue 1s generated primarly by the rents and service
charges earned by Canary Wharf Group from its property
interests on the Estate and turnover recogrused on
construction contracts in accordance with IAS 11 Revenue
for 2007 was £624 Bm, against £436 Bm for 2006 Rental
income Increased from £280 im 10 £299 4m, an increase of
69% The impact of spreading lease incentives was 1o
Increase  rental ncome by £24 1m in 2007
(2006 — £244m) Excluding this accounting adjustment,
rental Income increased from £2557m to £2753m an
increase of 7 7%, primarlly attributable 1o the benefit of
recent letings and rent reviews Service charge ncome
increased from £536m 10 £62 2m and miscellaneous
income, Including insurance rents reduced from £26 7m 1o
£24 8m over the year 2007 also nciuded £238 4m of
turnover recogrised on construction contracts (2006 —
£76 4m}

Cost of sales includes rents payable and property
management costs, movements on provisions for vacant
leasehold properties, as well as costs recognised on
construction contracts Rents payable and property
management costs were £84 4m 1n companson with
£82 2m for 2006 Taking mto account service charge and
miscellaneous income totalling £87 Om (2006 — £80 3mj),
a profit on estate management of £2 6m was achieved
(2006 - lossof £1 9m) The reduction in void costs relates
to recent lettings and the consequent increase In
occupancy on the Estate
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Business Review soninued

In 2007 Canary Wharf Group paid £6 3m to surrender Iis
obliganons relating to a vacant leasehold property acquired
in connecion with a leasing transaciion n 2004 As a result
of this transaction a surplus provision of £02m was
released to cost of sales Provisions relating to the
remaining vacant leasehold property rent support
commitments and certain other abligations of Canary Wharf
Group increasad by £2 6m in 2007, whereas there was a
net release of such provisions totalling £4 7m in 2006 In
addition, cost of sales for 2007 included £2 9m associated
with restruciuring certain retall tenancy agreements and
£1493m of costs recognised on construction contracts
(2006 - £764m) resuling in £89 1m of profit being
recegnised In the year (2006 - £nil)

For 2007 net property income was £385 6m, an increase of
£102 7m over 20086, attnbutable to the faciors referred to
above

Administrative expenses for 2007 were £47 Om In
comparnson with £38 7m for 2006 The increase In
administrative expenses was In part attnbutable to the
payment of deferred bonuses by Canary Wharf Group o
1ts management triggered by the achievemsant of certain
performance goals durng the year In addition, feastilty
study costs were Incurred 1IN connection with the review of
potential development and investment opportunities In
2006 an accrual relating to the acquisition of Canary Wharf
Group was released to administrative expenses, which
served to reduce the total ior the year by £2 2m

Underlying operating profit (as defined n Note 4) for 2007
was £340 3min companson with £245 8m for 2006 Of the
increase of £84 5m, £89 1m was attnbutable to the
recegrition of prafit on construction coniracts and £19 3m
to increased rental ncome partly offset by an increase of
£8 3m in administrative expenses

In addition to the underlying operating profit, Canary Whart
Group receved deferred proceeds totaling £8 3m relating
o the sale of two buldings in 2003 and released surplus
accruals and deierred income of £109m relating !0
previously disposed properiles Total operating profit for
2007 was £469 9m, which included £110 4m of revaluation
gaing, aganst £967 9m for 2006, including revaluation
gans of £722 1m

Underlying net financing costs (Note 7) for 2007 were
£238 1magainst £226 2m for 2006 In 2007, Canary Wharf
Group restructured 1its secuntised debt, resuling in
refinancing charges of £14 3m (Note 7) and recognised a
gain of £123 3m in 2006 in connection with the acguisition
of three finance leases Movements on derivative financial
instruments resulted N a net loss of £355m beng
recognised i the mcome statement 1n 2007 compared
with a gain of £19 1m in 2006 The increase n underlying
net interest payable of £11 3m was primanly atinbutable to
an (ncrease in borrowings

The grofit for the year before taxation for 2007 was £182 Om
In companson with a profit of £884 1m for 2006 The results
for 2007 and 2006 included certain capital and other profiis
and losses as described above Underlying profit before
taxation for 2007 was £102 2m (2006 - £138 6m) (Note 4)

Taxation for 2007 1s wholly atinbutable to deferred tax In
2007 a deferred tax credit of £23 8m was recognised
through the income statement [n 2006, a deferred tax
charge of £179 1m primarnly arose from the regquirement to
provide for deferred tax on revaluation surpluses and on
movements n the far values of derwative financial
Instruments

The profit for the year after taxation for 2007 was £205 8m
In comparison with a profit of £705 Om for 2006

The basic and diluted earnings per share for 2007 was
22 3p (2006 - 92 3p) {(Note 4)

BALANCE SHEET AND KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

Net assets In the group'’s balance sheet were £2,347 7m at
31 December 2007, in companson with £2,380 1m at
31 December 2006 and £2,620 3m at 30 June 2007 The
reduction N net assets over the year was principally
attributable to the dividends paid to equity shareholders
during the first half of the year of £319 7m and partly offset

-by the increase in the camrying value of properties of
£133 5m (Note 6) The reduction in net assets since
30 June 2007 was atinbutable to the reduction In the
carrying value of properties by £348 8m afier recognition
of profits on construction contracts

The company’s objective 13 o manage Its investment In
Canary Wharf Group so as to maximise growth in net
assets from increases in investment property values and
properiy development actwmties Accordingly the board
considers that the most appropnate tndicator of the group’s
performance 1s growth in adjusted net asset value per
share attributable to members of the company pror 1o the
payment of dividends Thus measure serves to capture the
board s judgements concerning, inter alia, leting strategy,
redevelopment and financial structure

Adjusted NAV includes the external valuation surplus on
construction contracts but excludes deferred tax and far
value adustments on defivatives In addition, in calculating
adjusted NAV the SG Shares, and unti it was redeemed,
the D Share are treated as equity rather than as,
respectively a debt instrument and a derrvative for batance
sheet purposes in accordance with accouniing standards
The calculation ot adjusted NAV 1s disclosed in Note 4
which indicates that adjusted NAV per share reduced from
£2 64 at 31 December 2006 1o £2 15 at 31 December
2007 after 70 5p of dwvidends per A, B and SG Share
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Adjusted NAV per share at 30 June 2007 was £2 49 and The movement In nat asset value per share 1s set out in the
the reduction to £2 15 at 31 December 2007 was prmarily  chart below which includes the position both before and
atinbutable to the fall in the carrying value of properties after dividends

£ /Share
4

Acquisin Dec-05 Jun-08 Dec-06 Jun07 Dec-O7

- Adjusted NAV per share beforg dwidends
D Adjusted NAV per share

Adjusted NNNAV per share 1s set out In the following table

31 December 30 June 31 December
2007 2007 2006
Note £m £m £m
Adjusted net assets atiributable to members of
the company ] 1,354 9 15718 1.6246
Fair value adjustment in respect of financial assets
and liabilities net of tax thereon (m 48 850 (113 4}
Deferred tax {in) {168 6) (324 6) (181 4}
Minority interest in above adjustiments 642 900 1156
Adjusted NNNAV 1,255 3 1,432 2 1,445 4
Cumulative dividends (v} 5123 5123 1799
1,767 6 1,944 5 16253
Adjusted NAV per share {n £215 £249 £2 64
Adjusted NNNAV per share (v} £199 £227 £2 35
Adjusted NNNAY per share before dvidends {v) £2 80 £308 £2 65
Note

0]
(u)

(1)
(v)

(v}

Refer to Note 4

The far value adjustment comprises the mark to market of dervatives in Note 4 and the after tax diference between the market value and book
value of debt (Note 21) excluding the SG Sharas which are ireated as equity in tha NNNAY calculation

Reler 1o Note 8

Total dradends paid since the acquisiion of Canary Wharl Group i 2004 of £657 6m £1 05 per share (31 December 2006 - £213 2m 34 6p per
share) of which £145 3m {31 December 2006 - £33 3m) was accounied for as a raduction in the hatihity recorded in respaect of the SG Shares
{Note 21)

Calculaton based on 830 Bm shares in 1ssue al 31 December 2007 {31 December 2006 -816 1m)
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Business Review contnued

On 14 February 2007, an intenm dividend of 22 5p was
paid on each of the $G, A and B Shares Subsequently on
18 June 2007, a further interm dvidend of 41 0p was
paid These dividends, in addition io dividends pard up to
31 December 2006 served 1o reduce adjusted NNNAV per
share from £2 80 to £1 99

In January 2007, 14,478,260 B Shares were 1ssued In
exchange tor the cancellation of the divdend and
distribution nghts attaching to the D Share Had this 1ssue
of shares occurred by 31 December 2006, the mmpact
wouid have been to reduce NNNAV per share by 6p to
£229

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The nsks and unceriainties facing the business of the
consolidated group are monitored through continuous
assessment more regular and formal quarterly review and
discussion at audit committee and board level of both the
company and Canary Wharf Group Board and audit
committee discussion focuses on the risks identfied as
part of the groups system of internai control which
highlights key risks faced by the company and allocates
specific day io day monitoring and control responsibilities
as appropnate The key nisks include the cychical nature of
the property market, financing nsk, concentration nsk and
policy and planning nisks

Cyclical nature of the property market

The valuation of the groups assets I1s subject 10 many
external economic and market factors which are cyclical
n nature These cycles manifest themselves in the
property market by such factors as the oversupply of
avallable space in the office market, a decline In tenant
demand {or space in London or a change in the market
perception of property as an nvestment Such potental
factors are constantly mornitored in order {0 ensure that the
group can react swiftly and flexibly should they anse The
upheaval In the financial markets during 2007 triggered by
the problems in the US sub-prime morigage market
impacted on the UK property and financial markets in
general The potential impact of ttus upheaval on the
business of the group has been, and conunues to be,
closely monitored

Financing risk

The broader economic cycle nevitably leads to
movements 1n inflation, interest rate and bond yields The
group finances its operations largely through a mixture of
surplus cash, secured borrowing and debentures The
group borrows at both fixed and floating rates and uses
Interest rate swaps or caps to modify exposure to interest
rate fluctuations Al of the group s facilities are fixed after

taking account of Interest rate hedging and cash deposiis
held as cash collateral With the exception of SFLs loan
faciity which falls due in 2010, all of the group's other
faciities are long term loans (with an average matunty of
16 2 years) Further deiats on the management of
treasury nsk can be found In the section ‘Business Review
— Treasury objectives' and Note 21 of the Notes to the
consclidated financial statements

Concentration risk

The majonty of the group’s real estate asseis are currently
located on or adjacent to the Estate Wherever possible
steps are taken to mitigate or avord matenal consequences
ansing from this concentration Whilst the focus of the
group will remain on and around the Estate, where value
can be added, the Canary Whari Group wil consider
opportunities  elsewhere such as the joint veniure
arrangements for the redevelopment of Drapers Gardens

Policy and plannming risks

The majorty of the group’s assets are currently located
within a single London borough Appropriate contact |1s
mamntamed with local and national government, but
changes 1n governmental policy on ptanning or taxation
could imit the ability of the group t0 maximise the long term
potential of s assets

TREASURY OBJECTIVES

The principal objectives of the group s treasury function are
to ensure the availlability of finance to meet the group's
current and anticipated reguirements and to minimise the
group s cost of capital The treasury function operates as a
cost centre rather than a profit centre and does not engage
In the trading of financial instruments

The group's financial instruments, other than dervatives
comprise borrowings, cash and hquid resources, and
various 1tems such as trade recewables and trade
payables that anse directly from iis operations The group
enters nto denvative transactions (principally interest rate
swaps and caps) only in order to manage the interest rate
nsk ansing from the groups vanable rate borrowings
Details of the financial nsks facing the group are disclosed
in Note 21 of the Notes to the consolidated financial
statements

BORROWINGS

in May 2007, £8000m was drawn down under a new
£880 Om Songbird loan facility by SFL which was used 1o
fund the repayment of £520 9m plus interest outstanding
under an existing loan The balance was used 10 pay the
dvidend totathing £258 4m declared in June 2007
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In Apnl 2007 Canary Wharf Group completed a
restructuring of its secuntisation involving the redempiion
of £572 6m of FRNs and the 1ssue of £726 Om new non-
amortising FRNs Additional proceeds raised of £153 Om
were represented principally by £51 0m of Class C2 notes,
rated A, and £100 Om of Class D2 notes, rated BEB Al of
the new notes 1ssued mature 1n Oclober 2037

During the year, Canary Whart Group alsoc entered into a
£1550m 3 year construction Ipan faciity secured on
5 Churchill Place A total of £36 6m including interest had
been drawn down under this facility at 31 December 2007

At 31 December 2007, net debt {including denvative
financial instruments at fair value, net of monetary deposits
and cash and cash equivalents) stood at £3,861 8m, up by
£217 2m from £3,644 6m at 31 December 2006 The
components making up net debt are shown in Note 21 of
the Notes to the consolidated financial statements

The increase In tolal borrowings including dervatives from
£4.674 5m 1o £5,000 7m primarily reflects the draw down
under the Songbird loan, the effect of restructuring Canary
Wharf Group's secuntisation and draw downs made by
Canary Wharf Group under 1ts new consiruction loan
facility, as referred to above

The increase i total borrowings was accompanied by an
increase In cash and cash equivalents from £882 4m to
£1020 5m prmarnly as a result of the draw downs and
payments on account on construction contracts referred to
above, partially offset by the dividends paid

At 31 December 2007 the group's weighted average cost
of debt was 6 4% including credit wraps (31 December
2006 -6 2%)

CASH FLOW

Cash generaled from operations for 2007 was £454 1min
comparison with £326 3m for 2006 This increase was
primarily atinbutable 10 net proceeds from construction
contracts and increased rental income 2007 included
£316 1m of payments received arising from agreements to
sell 30 Neorth Colonnade, 15 Canada Sguare and
20 Churchil! Place compared with 2006 which included
£131 8m irom the sale of 20 Churchili Place and
15 Canada Square

Sengbird Estates plc

Cash flows from investing actvities resulted in a cash
outflow of £104 3m for 2007 compared with £32 2m for
2006 2007 included £91 6m of development expenditure
on properties to be retained by Canary Whart Group (2006
- £414m) 2006 aiso included a deferred receipt of
£27 Om from an investment property sold in 2005

Cash flows from financing activities for 2007 resuited in an
inflow of £50 3m compared with an outflow of £1,007 6m
for 2006 Dwvidends were paid totaling £444 4m in 2007, of
which £319 7m was paid to the A and B shareholders,
compared with £78 0m n 2006 2007 included net
proceeds of £148 0m ansing from restruciunng Canary
Wharf Group s secuntisation, £279 1m on the restructuring
of the Songbird loan facility and a further £30 2m drawn
down subsequently and 34 9m drawn down under
Canary Wharf Group s consiruction loan facility Dvidends
paid on the SG Shares m excess of the finance charge
accrued totalled £112 Om in 2007 (2006 — £27 3m) 2006
included £836 6m expended on the acquisition of finance
leases by Canary Wharf Group, funded by the removal of
restrictions over certain cash collateral accounts totalling
£836 7m 2006 also included repayment of £203 6m
remaining on Canary Whart Group's £750 Gm loan facility
funded by the proceeds of the £300 Om retail loan facibty
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Directors’ Report

for the year ended 31 December 2007

The directors present ther report with the audited
consolidated financial statements far 2007

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the company 1s the management of
its Investment n tts main substdiary, Canary Wharf Group
the holding company for a group which specialises In
Iintegrated property  development, investment and
management focusing particularly on the Estate There
has, however, been a recent extension of the business into
the City of London via the joint venture arrangements in
respect of the redevelopment of Drapers Gardens

A detalled review of the business of the group during the
year, and of its position at 31 December 2007, can be
found in the Charmans Statement’ and the ‘Business
Review ' The key nsks and uncertainties identified for the
group are summansed in the ‘Business Review — Risks
and uncertanties’ Measures of the group’s performance
by reference to appropriate key performance indicators
may be found n the ‘Business Review — Balance sheet
and key performance indicators’

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Detatls of evenis after the balance sheet date are shown in
Note 30

RESULTS AND VALUATIONS

The results for the year are set out in the Consolidated
Income Statement Changes in the market value of land
and buildings during 2007 are reviewed in the '‘Business
Review - Property portiolio

DIVIDENDS AND RESERVES

On 21 December 2006 the board declared an intenm
dmwdend of 28 5p on each of the SG, A and B Shares
which was paid on 14 February 2007

On 31 May 2007 the board declared a further interim
dividend of 41 0p on each of the SG, A and B Shares,
which was paid on 18 June 2007

In the event the SG Shares fixed cumulative preferred
dividend 15 not paid on the due date, in accordance with
the Articles the rate at which the dwidend 1s catculated
ncreases by 0 5% up to a maximum of 10 0% However
n consideration of the payment of interm dividends
totaling in aggregate 70 5p per SG Share, which was
significantly beyond the accrued fixed entitlement at the
dates of payment, the holders of the SG Shares agreed to
waive ther entitlement to any preferred dividend In excess
of 80% per annum n the relevant periods The SG
Shares are classified as habihues, and dividends payable
on the SG Shares are treated as interest payable and

inciuded within the current portion of long term borrowings
{(Note 18 of the Notes to the consoldated financial
statemenls)

The profit of £100 4m (2006 -~ £403 1m) atinbutable to the
members of the company has been transferred to
reserves

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

This 1s the first year the group reports its results under IFRS
witch have been adopted with effect from 1 January 2007
This change to the accounting basts anses from legislation
requinng all EU listed compzanies {includng AIM
companies) to apply these standards to their financial
statements Comparative figures for 2006 have been
restated 1n accordance with IFRS The principal impacis of
adopting IFRS  along with comparatives for the year ended
31 December 2006 contained within this report, were
published in a stock exchange announcement dated
15 August 2007 The impact of the first time adoption of
IFRS 1s disclosed in Note 29

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no changes to the authonsed share capital of
the company during the vear ended 31 Decernber 2007
Followming the extracrdinary general meeting of the
company held on 24 January 2007 £1,447 826 was
capitalised from the companys share premium account In
order to 1ssue 14,478,260 B Shares to BL in exchange for
canceltation of ail dividend and disinbution nghts attaching
to the D Share The D Share was redeemed by the
company on 26 February 2007

The atiention of shareholders s drawn to Note 23 of the
Notes to the consolidated financial statements which
prowides details of the authorised and 1ssued share capital
of the company and summanses agreements between
shareholders and the various nghts attaching to each class
of share

GOING CONCERN

The directors are required to prepare the financial
statements for each financial year on a gomng concern
basis unless {o do so would not be appropnate Hawving
made requisiie enquiries, the directors have a reasonable
expectation that the company and the group have
adequate resources o continue ther operations for the
foreseeable future and hence the financial statements have
been prepared on that basis

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDINGS

At the date of this report, 74 42% of the 1ssued share capial
of the company 1s held by the nitial entties involved In the
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offer for Canary Wharf Group with the remaining 25 58%
held n the form of B Shares which are listed on AIM

The various nghis attaching to each class of shares are
summarised in Note 23 of the Notes o the consolidated
financial statements

At 20 March 2008 the company had keen notified of the
following disciosable interests of 3 0% or more In any class
of shares of the company

No of issued Voting
shares capsal nghts
m % %
Glick Entiies' 176 75 2803 3828
Morgan Stanley
related funds™ 166 63 26 42 3394
Brihish Land
{Joint Ventures)
Limited™ 112 10 1778 2042
The Kingdom Trust™ 40 67 6 45 110
RF{UK} nvestments
Limted® # 18 10 287 049
Credit Suisse Securities
(Europe) Limited® 14 24 226 039
Black Rock Inc® 850 134 023
tehman Brothers
Imternational (Europe)® 732 116 019
Note

(1} Invesiment vehicles and trusts connected with Simon Glick and his
tarmily holding SG Snares

(2} Comprises the MSREF Funds Princes Gate inwvestors, MSQ (a
Maorgan Stantey related entity comprising State of Qatar 99 5% and
MSREF 05%) and Morgan Stanley Real Estate Special Situatons
Fund Il together holding A Shares and B Shares

{3) A wholly owned subsidiary of The Brtish Land Company PLC
holding A Shares and B Shares

(4} The Kingdom Trust 1s a trust established for the benelit of His Royal
Highness Prince Alwaleed 8in Talal Bin Abdulaziz Al Saud and his
family and holds B Shares only

(5) B Shares only

{6) Ho!ds B Shares as Trustee ot the LMR Trust which 1s a discretionary
trust established for the beneht of Pau! Reichmann fus famuly and
cthers

Songbird Estates plc

DIRECTORS

The following directors served on the board of the
company during the year

Brian Carr

Eugene Doyle (resigned 20 June 2007)
Robert Gray {resigned 25 Septemnber 2007)
Gabriela Gryger

Philp Lader

Shmuel (Sam) Levinson
Gavin MacDonalg
Alexander {Alex) Midgen
Brian Niles

Richard Powers

Dawid Pritchard

Timothy Roberts

{appointed 25 September 2007)

{appointed 20 June 2007)

In accordance with the Articles, the appointment of David
Pritchard as the independent drrector of the company will
he put forward for ratfication at a separate class meatng
of the B shareholders to be held on the same day as the
forthcoming annual general meeting Biograptucal details
for David Pntchard and the other directors are provided in
‘Members' information’

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS

Sam Levinson has direct and indirect relationships with the
Ghck Entites and accordingly, has an interest in
176 754,408 SG Shares of the company being the SG
Shares held by the Glick Entittes None of the remaining
directors, or ther famiies, had a bengficial interest in the
ordinary shares of the company or any of its subsidiary
comganies at 1 January 2007 or 31 December 2007 All of
the directors are non-executve directors and the
company has not, therefore, adopted any share plan for
the benefd of its directors

Except as stated n Noie 28 of the Noies to the
consolidated financial statements no other contract
subsisted dunng the year in relation to the business of the
company in which any director was matenally nterested

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The drrectors are responsible for prepanng the annual
report and the financial statements in accordance with
apphcable law and regulations

Company law requres the directors to prepare financial
statements for each ftnancial year The diwectors are
required by the AIM rules to prepare the group financial
statements under IFRS as adopted by the European Union
and have elected to prepare the company financial
staterments under UK GAAP The financial statements are
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Directors’ Report

for the year ended 31 December 2007 contnues

also required by law to be properly prepared In
accordance with the Companies Act 1985

International Accounting Standard 1 requires thal IFRS
financial statemenis present fairly for each financial year
the groups financial position, financial periormance and
cash flows This requires the farthful representation of the
effects of transactions, other events and conditions n
accordance with the definons and recogniticn critena for
assets, labilities, income and expenses set out in the
International Accounting Standards Board's Framework for
the preparation and presentation of financial statements
In wirtually all crcumstances a farr presentanon will be
achieved by compliance with all applicable IFRSs
Direcicors are, however, also required to

e properly select and apply accounting policies,

* present information, including accounting policies, In a
manner that provides relevant, rehable, comparable
and understandable information,

* provide additional disclosures when compliance with
the specific requiremenis in the IFRSs are insufficient 1o
egnable users to understand the mpact of particular
transactions, other events and conditions on the entity's
financial position and financial performance, and

* make an assessmeni of the companys and the group s
ability 1o continue as a going concern

The drreciors have elecied to prepare the company
fingncial statements mn accordance with UK GAAP and
applcable law The company financial statements are
reguired by law t0 give a true and farr view of the state of
affairs of the company In prepanng these financial
statements, the directors are required o

* select sutable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently,

* make udgmenis and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent

* state whether apphicable UK Accounting Standards
have been followed, subject 10 any matenal departures
digclosed and explaned In the financial statements,
and

* prepare the financial statements on the going concern
basis unless 1t 1s napproprate to presume that the
company wil continue Iin business

The drectors are responsible for keeping proper
accounting records that disclose with reasonable

accuracy at any time the financtal position of the group and
enable them to ensure that the company financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 1985 The
directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the company and hence for taking reasconable steps for
the prevention and detechon of fraud and other
irregulariies

The directors are responsitle for the mantenance and
mtegrity of the corporate and financial information included
on the companys website Legislaton in the United
Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial staternents may differ from legislaton in other
junisdictions

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE

The company provides an indemnity 1o all directors (io the
extent permitted by law) in respect of habiliies incurred as
a result of therr office The group also has in place habihty
insurance covering the directors and officers of the
company and its subsidiary undertakings Neither the
indemnity or the insurance provide cover i the event that
the director 1s proven to have acted dishconestly or
fraudulently

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Due to the concentrated shareholder base and
shareholder representation on the board of the company, it
15 not practical for the company to comply with all of the
principles of the QCA Corporate Governance Guidelines
for AIM Companies However, the directors are mindful of
therr duties and responsibiities to all shareholders, and as
such the following principles of corporate governance

apply

« the board comprises an independent non-executive
chairman whose appointment must be ratified by the B
shareholders at a separate class meeting to be held on
the same day as the companys annual general
meeting Shareholders holding in aggregate 20 0% or
more of the 1ssued B Shares are enttled under the
Articles 10 propose a person io be nommated as the
independent director

+ the board meets at least four times a year and has
formally adopted a schedule of powers which are
reserved to the board The beoard has full and timely
access to all relevant information fo enable it to
discharge its dutes effectively,

* commitiees of the board, which have adopted
formahsed terms of reference, have been established
1o deal with the day 1o day matiers of the company and
speciiic areas of responsibility,
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* ndependent advisers have been appointed by the
company,

* zll drectors have direct access ¢ the advice and
services of the company secretary and are able to seek
independent professional advice at the expense of the
company If required in connection with their duties,

+ formal agreements are in place between the company
significant shareholders {(as appropriate) and ther
associates and Canary Wharf Group in relation to the
dissermnmaton of information, provision of services and
consultancy arrangements,

* the board has responsibility for the mantenance of a
sound systemn of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness, and

* a share dealng cocde has been adopted by the
company

Commiitees

Announcement Audit and Executive Commitiees have
been established with formally delegated duties and
responsibiliies, which were reviewed and updated during
the year Dawvid Pntchard, the independent non-executive
director and charrman of the company, chairs all of the
committees

The Announcement Committee, which has two members in
addition to the charman mests as fequired to consider
information that should or may be required to be
disgeminated to the market having regard to the
company's and the directors’ continuing obligations

The Audit Commiitee meets at least four imes a year and
has three members 1n addiion to the charman All
meetings are attended by the company’s external auditors
and, as approprtate, ceftan members of semor
management of Canary Whart Group, which 1s the main
subsidiary of the company

Powers to implement the decisions of the board together
with the day to day management and administration of the
company and iis wholly owned subsidianes SAL and SFL,
are delegated to the Executive Committee which meeis on
a quarterly basis The Executve Committee has iour
members, including the chairman

Membership of the committees can be found In Members’
Information’

Songhird Estates plc

POLICIES
Environmental

Due 1o the naiure of the companys business, being the
management of its investment in Canary Wharf Group and
Its management structure it 1s not feasible for the company
to adopt an environmental and social policy In its own nght
However, the directors are conscious of environmentai
Issues and adhere, as appropriate, to Canary Wharf
Group's environmental policy Details of the Canary Wharf
Group policy, which extends 1o all subsidiary companigs
within Canary Wharf Group, together with a copy of the
latest Canary Wharf Group Environmental and Socal
Report can be obtamed from www greencanarywharf com

Employment

As neither the company, nor its wholly owned subsidianes
have employeges an employment policy has not been
adoepted by the company However, Canary Wharf Group
has adopted a detalled employment policy, detals of
which can be found in the annual report of Canary Wharf
Group

Treasury

Detatls of the group’s treasury objectives and the far value
of the group's debt can be found in Note 21 of the Notes to
the consolidated financial statements

Payment of suppliers

it 15 the group s policy to settle the terms of payment with
its suppliers when agreeing the terms of each transaction
to ensure that suppilers are made aware of, and abide by
the terms ot payment

Further disclosure on consolidaied trade and other
payabies can be found in Note 17 of the Notes to the
consolidated financial statements and on the company
only trade creditors in Note (f) ic the Company Financial
Statements

DONATIONS

No political donations (as defined in the Companies Act
2008) or charitable donations were made by the company
during 2007 or 2006

Canary Wharf Group made charitable donations of
£394,451 1n 2007 (2006 - £208,838), pnmarily in support
of lecal community nitiatives  Peolitical donatons and
poltical expenditure (as defined by the Companies Act
2006 and which include deonations in kind) made by
Canary Wharf Group dunng the vear comprnsed £65 680 to
the Labour Party and £11,500 to the Conservative Party
(2006 - £10,000 to the Labour Party) In addition, political
expenditure (as defined by the Companies Act 2006) of
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Songbird Estates plc

Directors’ Report
for the year ended 31 December 2007 coninues

£1,200 for the Labour Party and £3,588 for the
Conservative Parly was incurred by Canary Wharf Group n
2007 The above figures relate 10 the financial year and as
such exiend over two shareholder authonty periods for
poltical donauons and expenditure

AUDITORS AND DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO
AUDITORS

A resolution to re-appoint Deloitte & Touche LLP as the
company's auditors will be proposed at the annual general
meeting

So far as the directors are aware there (s no relevani audit
information of which the acditors are unaware Each
director has taken ali reasonable steps to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish
that the auditors are aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in
accordance with the provisions of s234ZA of the
Companies Act 1985

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND CLASS MEETING

The annual general meeting will be held at 2 30 pm on
Wednesday 28 May 2008 at 10 Upper Bank Street, Canary
Wharf, London E14 544, followed by the B sharehoider
class meeting in accordance with the Articles The Notices
of Meetings together with explanations of the iems of
spectal business to be censidered at the meetings, are
enclosed with this report

By order of the board

X Lned -

JOHN GARWOOD
Secretary

26 March 2008
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Songbird Estates plc

to the Members of Songbird Estates plc

We have audiied the group financial statements of
Songbird Estates plc for the year ended 31 December
2007 which compnse the Consolidated Income Statement
the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Cash
Flow Statement the Consolidated Statement of
Recognised Income and Expense and the related Notes 1
0o 30 These group financial statements have been
prepared under the accounting policies set out therain

We have reported separately on the parent company
financial statements of Sengbird Estates plc for the year
ended 31 December 2007

This report 1s made solely to the company s members, as a
body, i accordance with section 235 of the Companies
Act 1885 Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the company's members those matters we
are recuired to state to them i an audwors’ report and for
no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibility to anycne other
than the company and the company’s members as a body,
for our auvdit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDITORS

The directors' responsibilities for prepanng the Annual
Repert and the group financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union are set out in the Statement of Directors
Responsibilities

Our responsibility 1s to audit the group financial statemenis
in accordance with relevamt legal and regulatory
requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK
and Ireland)

We report to you our opinion as to whether the group
financial statements give a true and farr view, whether the
group financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985 We also report
to you whether in our opinion the snformation given in the
Drrectors Report 15 consistent with the group financal
statements The information given in the Directors Report
includes that specific informaton presented in the
Business Review that 1s cross referred from the Principal
Actvity and Business Review section of the Directors’
Report

In addition we report to you If 10 our opinion the company
has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not
received all the information and explanations we require for
our audit or if information specified by law regarding
dwectors remuneration and other transactions i1s not
disclosed

We read the other information contained mn the Annual
Report as described in the contents section and consider

whether 1t 15 consistent with the audited group financial
siatements We consider the 'mplications for our report if
we become aware of any apparent misstatements or
matenal inconsislencies with the group financial
siatements Our responsibilities do not extend o any
further information outside the Annual Report

BASIS OF AUDIT OPINION

We conducted our audit 1n accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the
Auditing Practices Board An audit ncludes examination,
on a test basis, of evidence relevant 1o the amounis and
disclosures in the group financial staterments It also
includes an assessment of the significant estmates and
judgements made by the directars in the preparaion of the
group financiat statements, and of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the groups circumstances,
consistently appled and adequatety disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so &s to obtan ali the
information and explanations which we considered
necessary In order to provide us with sufficient ewdence to
give reasonable assurance that the group financial
statements are free from material misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or other irregularty or error In forming our
opinon we also evaluated the overall adeauacy of the
presentation of information 1 the group fingncial
statements

OPINION
in our opnion

* the group fnanceal statements give a true and fair view,
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union of the state of the group's affars as at
31 December 2007 and of its profit for the year then
ended,

* the group financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985,
and

« the information given in the Directors' Report s
consistent with the group financial statements

Dl Taks U

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London

United Kingdom

26 March 2008
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Songbird Estates plc

Consolidated Income Statement

for the year ended 31 December 2007

2007 2006
Capital Capital
Underlying*  and other Total Undertying * and other Total
Note £m £m £m Em £m em
Gross development,
rental and related
mcome 5 6248 - 624 8 4368 - 4368
Cost of sales (239 2) - {239 2) (153 9) - {153 9)
Net development,
rental and related
income 5 3856 - 3856 2829 - 2829
Share of associates and
joint ventures
(after taxation) 12 {14) - (14) (0 3) - (03)
Administrative expenses (47 0) - (47 0) (387 - (387)
Other income 5 31 192 223 19 - 19
Net revaluation gains & - 1104 1104 - 722 1 7221
Operating profit 3 3403 129 6 4699 2458 7221 967 9
Net financing costs
- investment revenues 7 534 - 534 461 - 46 1
- financing costs 7 (291 5) (35 5) (327 0) (272 3) 191 (253 2)
- refinancing (costs)/igans 7 - (14 3) (143} - 1233 1233
(238 1) (49 8) (287 9) (226 2) 142 4 (83 8)
Profit for the year
before taxation 1022 798 1820 196 8645 884 1
Taxation
- deferred tax 8 238 (179 1)
Profit for the year
after taxation 4 2058 7050
Attroutable to
Equity holders of
the company 1004 4031
Minonity interest 1054 3019
2058 7050
Earmings per share
- basic and diluted 4 223p 92 3p

*As defined 1n Notes 1 and 4
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Songhird Estates plc

Consolidated Statement of Recognised Income and
Expense for the year ended 31 December 2007

2007 2008
fm £m
Profit for the year after taxation 2058 7050
Transferred from equity In respect of cash flow hedges 358 74
Tax on items transferred from equity (10 0) (2 2)
258 52
Revaluation of development property 228 1729
Share of revalyation of asscciated undertakings' development property 03 -
{Losses)/gains on cash flow hedges (187} 225
Deferred tax on items taken directly to equity 10) (58 5)
Net iIncome recognised drectly i equity 282 1421
Total Recognised income and Expense for the year 2340 847 1
Atinbutable to
Equity holders of the company 1128 489 4
Minority mnterest 1212 3577
2340 847 1
Refer 1o Note 24 for further details
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Songbird Estates plc

Consolidated Balance Sheet
at 31 December 2007

2007 2006
Note £m £m
ASSETS
Non current assets
Investment properties 11 6,019 4 58856
Properties under construction 11 99 3 943
Development properties 11 4520 4149
Plant and eguipment 11 08 04
6,5716 6,405 2
QOther non current assets
Investments 12 236 128
Denwvatwve financial nstruments 20 03 115
Tenant ncentives and deferred negotiation cosis 14 192 6 163 6
6,7881 6,593 1
Current assets
Trade and other recevables 13 672 490
Monetary deposits 15 1184 147 5
Cash and cash equivalents 16 1,0205 882 4
1,206 1 1078 9
Total assets 7,994 2 76720
LIABILITIES
Current habilities
Current portion of long term borrowings 18 (61 8) (103 5}
Trade and other payables 17 (449 7) (383 9)
{(5115) (487 4)
Non current liabilities
Borrowings 19 (4,844 9) (4 427 5)
Dervative financial instruments 20 {94 3) (155 Q)
Deferred tax labilities 8 {168 6) (181 4)
Provisions 22 {27 2) {40 6)
(5,135 0) (4 804 5)
Total habilities {5,646 5) (5,291 9)
Net assets 23477 2,3801
Equity
Share capital 23 45 4 439
Other reserves 24 464 7 453 6
Retained earnings 24 564 7 7309
Total equity attributable to members of the company 1,074 8 1,228 4
Minonty interests 24 1,272 9 11517
Total equity 2,347 7 2,380 1

Approved by the board and authonsed for issue on 26 March 2008 and signed on its behalf by

DAVID PRITCHARD
Chairman
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Songbird Estates plc

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2007

2007 20086
Note £m £m

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations 26 4541 326 3

Interest paid (297 0) (270 7)
Interest receved 547 463

Interest elemert of finance lease rentals (2 1) (51)
Financing expenses {17 G) (4 0}
Breakage costs {0 6) (05)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 1921 923

Cash flows from investing activities

Development expenditure (91 6) 41 4)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (0 8) (7 3)
Sale of iInvestment propearties ' - 270

Investment in and loans to joint ventures (11 8) {105)
Net cash outflow from investing activities (104 3) (322)
Cash flows from financing activities

Dividends paid (3197 {78 Q)
Dwidends paid o minonty shareholders - (120 1}
Repayment of SG Shares fiability (1120) (27 3}
Draw down of construction loan 349 -

Draw down of secuntised debt 7260 -

Redemption of secuntised debt (581 4) (119)
Repayment of finance leases . - {836 6)
Draw down of secured loans - 3000

Repayment of secured loans (6 8) (210 1)
Draw down of Songhird 1oans 8302 1752

Repayrnent of Songbird loans (520 9} (198 8)
Net cash inflow/(outflow} from financing activities 503 (1,007 8)
Net decrease In cash and cash equivalents 1381 {947 5)
Cash and cash equwvalents at start of year 882 4 18299

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 16 1,0205 882 4

Cash flows resulung from construction contracts have been reclassified from investing activities to operating activities to
provide a more appropriate presentation of the group's cash flow (Note 1)
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Songbird Estates plc

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2007

BAS!IS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial information presented 1n this report has been prepared in accordance with IFRS and IFRIC
interpretations as adopted by the EU and therefore complies with AIM rules

At the date of authonsation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations which have not
heen appled n these financial statemenis were in 1ssue but not yet effective

IFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations

IAS 1 {Revised) Presentation of Financial Staterments

IAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing costs

IAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions

IFRIC 2 Service Concession Arrangements

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

IFRIC 14 IAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Beneftt Asset Mimimum Funding Requirements and therr
Interaction

The directors have elected to adopt the disclosure requirements of IFRS 8 in 2007 As aresult, no segmental analysis
1s disclosed This 1s consistent with internal management reporting

The directors anticipate that the adoption of the other Standards and Interpretations in future penods will have no
matenal impact on the financial statements of the group

These financial statements have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention as modihied by the revaluation
of land and buitdings and certain financial Instruments A summary of the more mportant group accounting policies
which have been apphed consistenily in all matenal respects throughout the year and for the comparative year (as
restated for IFRS), 1s set out below In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash flows resulting from construction
contracts have been reclassified from investing activities to operating activities to provide a more appropnate
presentation of the group's cash flow

The principal impacts of adepung IFRS and the disclosures required by IFRS 1 concerning the transiion from
UK GAAF 1o IFRS are given in Note 29

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financral statements include the financial statements of the company and its subsicdianes for
the periods reported For the purposes of prepanng these consolidated accounts, subsidianes are thosg entities
where the company controls in excess of 50 0% of the voting share capsdal of an entity Control exists when the
company has the power, directly or Indwectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as io
obtain benefits from 1ts actvives The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated
financral statements from the date that control commences until the date control ceases

Associates and joint ventures are accounted for under the eqguity method, whereby the consohdated balance
sheet incorporates the groups share of the net assets of the relevant entiies The consoldated income
statement incorporates the group s share of associate profits after tax An entity 1s classified &s an associated
undertaking when the group has significant influence over the economic acivity of an undertaking but does not
have control An entity 1s classified as a jont venture where the contractual arrangement by which the group
undertook to jomn an economic activity provides Joint cantrol

Intra-group batances and any unrealised gans and losses ansing from intra-group transactions are elminated
in preparing the consolidated fnancial statements

(b) Acquisitions and business combinations

Where properties are acquired through corporate acquisitions and there are no significant assets or labilities
other than property and related debt, the acguisition 18 treated as an asset acauisition In zll other cases the
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(c)

(d)

(e)

Songtird Estates ple

acquisiion 1s accounted for as a business combination, In accordance with IFAS 3 in which case the assets and
lablities of a subsidiary [oint venture or assocated undertaking are measured at ther estmated {arr value at the
date of acquisiion The results of such business combinations are included from the effective date of acquisition
to the effective date of disposal The excess of acquisition costs over the group's interest in the fair value of the
identifiable assets and habilities of the new entity at the date of acquisiion is recognised as goodwill

Investment properties and propertites occupied by Canary Wharf Group

Investment properties are those properties that are held erther to earn rental income or for capital appreciation
or both

Property occupied by the group 15 carmed al far value based on a professional valuation made as of each
reporting date and where such valuation 1s not material included tn investment properties Addiions consist of
costs of a capital nature

Acquired investment properties are measured initially at cost, including refated transaction cosis After inital
recegnition at cost, investment properties are carried at therr fair values based on a professional valuation made
as of each reporting date Properties are treated as acquired at the point when the group assumes the significant
risks and returns of ownership and as disposed when these are transferred io the buyer Additions to Investment
properties consist of costs of a capital nature

The difference between the fair value of an investment property at the reperting date and 1ts carrying amount
prior to re-measurement I1s Included in the iIncome siatement as a valuation gain or lboss When the group begins
to redevetop an existing investment property for continued future use as an investment property, the property
remains an investment property and 1s accounted for as such

Non current assets held for sale

Non current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and farr value less
costs to sell

Non current assets are classified as held for sale if ther carrying amount will be recovered through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use This condion 1s regarded as met only when the safe 1s highly
probable and the asset 1s available for immediate sale in its present condition Management must be commitied
to the sale which should be expecied to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date
of classification No properties were classfied as non curremt assets held for sale at 31 December 2007 or
31 December 2006

Development properties and properties under construction for investment

Development properties are those properties held with the intention to develop for future use as an Investment
property When construction commences on such development properties they are re-classilied at farr value as
a property under construction for investment Properties under construction for investment and development
properties are recognised at farr value at each reporting date Any gain or loss on re-measurement 15 taken direct
to equity unless any loss in the pernod exceeds any net cumulative gain previously recogrused in equity In the
latter case, the amount by which the loss In the period exceeds the net cumulative gain previously recognised
15 taken to the income statement On completion, the property I1s transferred to Investment oroperty with any final
difference on re-measurement accounted for in accordance with the foregoing policy

Finance costs assoclated with direct expendiure on properties under construction 1o be held as an nvestment
property or undergoing major refurbishment are capitahsed The interest capitalsed 1s calculated using the
groups weighted average cost of borrowings after adjusting for borrowings associated wih specific
developments Where borrowings are associated with specific deveiopments, the amount capitalised 15 the
gross interest ncurred on those borrowings less any investment ncome ansing on therr temporary invesiment
Interest 1s capitalised as from the commencement of the development work until the date of practical completion
The capnalisation of finance costs 15 suspended H there are prolonged periods when development activity 1s
Interrupted
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Songbird Estates plc

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2007 contnues

U

(9)

v

1)

(k)

i

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment comprises computers, furniture, fixtures and fitings and improvements to group offices
These assets are stated at cost less accumnulated depreciation and any recognised imparrment and are
depreciated on a straight line basis over ther estimated useful lives of between 2 and 3 years

Construction contracts

Consiruction contracts consist of properties that are being constructed In accordance with long term
development contracts and will ultimately be sold 1o a third party Properties held for sale are shown at the lower
of cost (being the carrying value at the previous year end plus subsequent additions) and net realisable value
Revenue on ¢onstruction contracls 1s recognised according o the stage reached in the contract by reference
1o the value of work completed using the percentage of completion method The gross amount due compnses
costs ncurred plus recognised profits fess the sum of recognised losses and progress billings Where the sum
of recognised losses and progress billings exceeds costs incurred pius recogrised profits, the amount 1s shown
as payments on account

When it 1s probable that total contract costs will excead total contract revenue the expected loss 1s recogrised
immediately as an expense

Trade receivables

Trade recewvables are recognised inially at farr value A prowision for impairment 1s established where there 15
objective evidence that the group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the onginal terms of
the recevables concerned

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnise cash balances, deposits held with banks and ather short term highly igquid
Investments with onginal maturiies of three months or less

Monetary deposits

Amounts held on deposit with oniginal maturiies 1IN excess of three months are classfied as monetary deposits
and accounted for at amortised cost

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are stated at cost

Provisions

A provision 18 recognised in the balance sheet when the group has a present obligation as a result of a past
avent and it 1s probable that an outilow of economic benefits will be required to settie the obiigation If the effect
Is materal, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate the nsks specific to the habitity

{m) Borrowings

Borrowings are recogrised initially at far value iess attnibutable transaction costs Subseguent to nital
recognition borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between the amount inimally recognised
and rademption vaiue being recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings, using the
effective interest method

The effective interest method 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
Interest expense over the relevant period The effective interest rate 1s the rate that exactly disceunis estmated
future cash flows {including all fees that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability
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(n)

(o)

{p)

(a)

Songbird Estates plc

Pension benehits
Contributions to the defined coniribution schemes are expensed as they fall due

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classed as equily External costs diectly attnbutable to the issue of new shares are shown
In equity as a deduction from the proceeds

The SG Shares are classified as a lability and are included in amounts payable in mere than one year

The finance cost of the SG Shares 15 classified as a financing expense In the income staternent and, when
accrued, included in amounts payable within one year The excess of amounts paid over interest accrued, In
accordance with the shareholders’ rights, serves to reduce the carrying value of the llability included in amounts
payable

The D Share was classified as a derivative stated atits {far value in amounts payable within one year prior to its
conversion to B Shares Movements in the fair value of the D Share were classiied as a financing expense in
the income statement

The consideration paid including any directly attributable incremental costs, by any group entity to acquire
Treasury Shares 1s deducted from equity untll the shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed of Where Treasury
Shares are scld or reissued, the net consideration received 1S iIncluded In equity

Share-based payments

The cost of granting share options and other share-based remuneraton to employees and directors 1n
accordance with Canary Wharf Group’s share scheme 15 allocated to the same expense category as the
employment cost of the relevant employees The majonty of members of the scheme are able to opt for a cash
settlement, calculated in accordance with the terms of the grant at the end of the vesting period and linked to
the value of B Shares al thal date Accordingly a lability 1s recorded based on the market value of the B Shares
at each balance sheet date The resulting values are recognised In the Income statement over the vesting perod
of the options and other grants on & straight ine basis

Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration received or recervable and 1s stated net of discounts
and VAT

Revenue comprises rental ncome, service charges and other recoveres from ienants of the group s properties,
and income ansing on long term contracts Service charges and cther recovenes include directly recoverable
expenditure together with any chargeable management fees and are recognised as they fall due

Revenue from construction contracts 1s recogmsed 1n accordance with the groups accounting policy on
construction contracts

Rental income from investment property leased out under an operating lease s recognised in the income
statement on a straight ine basis over the term of the lease Lease incentves granted, including reni iree
pernods, are recognised as an integral part of the net consideration for the use of the property and are therefore
also recognised on the same, straight ine basis An adustment 13 made to ensure that the carrying value of the
related property, including the accrued rent, amortised lease Incentives and negotiation costs, does not exceed
the external valuation

Contingent rents, being those lease payments that are not fixed at the inception of a lease, for example turnover
rents, are recorded as income In the perods in which they are earned
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Songbird Estates plc

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2007 connued

)

(s)

"

Where revenue I1s obtained by the sale of assets, it 1s recogrised when significant nsks and returns have been
transferred 10 the buyer In the case of sale of properties, this 1s on completion

Expenses
Property and contract expenditure incurred prior to the exchange of a contract I1s expensed as incurred

Direct costs incurred in negohating and arranging a new lease are amortised on a straight line basis over the
period from the date of lease commencement to the earliest termination date

Imparment of tangible and intangible assets

The carrying amounts of the group s non-financial assets, other than investment property (see (c) above), are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there 15 any indication of mparment If any such
indication exists the assets recoverable amount is estimated An impairment loss 1s recognised In the income
statement whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset 1s the greater of its net selling pnce and iis value in use The value In use
15 determined as the net present value of the future cash flows expected to be derved from the asset,
discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the ume value of money
and the risks specific to the asset

An impairment loss 1s reversed If there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of an assel An impairment loss 1s reversed only (o the extent that the assets carrying amount after the
reversal does not exceed the amount which would have been determined net of applicable depreciation, f no
impairrment loss had been recognised

Derivatives

The group uses foreign currency exchange and interest rate derivatives to help manage (s nsks of changes in
ioreign currency exchange rates and interest rates In accordance with its treasury policy, the group does not
hold or 1ssue derivatives for trading purposes

In order for a dervative to qualfy for hedge accounting the group s required to document the refationship
between the item being hedged and the hedging instrument The group 15 also required to demonstrate an
assessment of the relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument which shows that the
hedge will be effective on an ongoing basis The effectiveness testing 1s re-performed at each balance sheet
date to ensure that the hedge remains highly effective

Changes in the fair valug of dervative financiat instruments that are designated and effective as hedges of fuiure
cash flows are recogrised directly n equity and the ineffective portion is recogrised immediately in the income
statement If the cash flow hecige of a firrm commitment or forecasted transaction results in the recogrition of an
asset or a hatilty, then, at the time the asset or liability 1s recognised, the associaied gains or losses on the
dervative that had previously been recognised in equity are included in the wnitial measurement of the asset or
habiity For hedges that do not result In the recognition of an asset or a liability, amounts deferred n equity are
recognised in the income statement in the same period In which the hedged tem affecis net profit or loss

Changes n the far value of denvative financial instruments that do not guahfy for hedge accounting are
recogrised in the income statement as they anse

Hedge accounting I1s discontinued when the hedging instrurment expires or 15 sold, terminated, or exercised or
no longer qualfies for hedge accounting At that time, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument
recognised n equity I1s retained In equity uniil the forecasted transaction oceurs 1 a hedged transaction s no
fonger expected 1o occur, the net cumulative gain or loss recognised In equity 1$ transferred to net profit or loss
for the penod
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Denvatves embedded m other financial instruments or other host contracis are treated as separate dervatives
when therr nsks and charactenstics are not closely related to those of host contracts and the host contracts are
not carried at fair value, with gains or losses reported n the income statement

Tax

Deferred tax 1s provided in full using the balance sheet hability method on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and labilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
PUrpOSes

A deferred tax asset I1s regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only when, on the basis of all availabie
evidence, 1t can be regarded as more hikely than not that there will be sutable taxable profis from which the
future reversal of the underlying temporary differences can be deducted The deferred 1ax effect of tar value
adustments anging from business combinations Is Incorporated i the consohdated balance sheet

No provision is made for temporary differences (1) arising on the initial recognition of assets or labilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit and (i) relating to investments In subsidianes t¢ the extent that the group
15 able to control the reversal of the temporary differences and it s probable that they will not reverse in the
foreseeable future

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the 1ax rate that is expected to apply to the penod when the asset 1s realised or the
habtiy 1s settled based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date
Deferred tax 1s charged or credited in the income statement, except where it relates to tems charged or credited
directly to equity, In which case the deferred tax 1s also dealt with in equity

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee All other leases are classified as operating leases

The group as lessee

(1) Finance leases — are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value of the asset and
the present value of the minimum lease payments Each lease payment is allocated between the hability and
finance charges The corresponding rental obligations, net of costs incurred in establishing the finance
lease obligation, are included in borrowings The finance charges are charged {o the income statement over
the lease penod so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the hability
for each perod

() Operating leases - payments, including prepaymenis, made under operating leases (net of any mcentves
receved from the lessor) are charged to the iIncome statement on a straight line basis over the pertod of the
lease

The group as lessor

All leases operated by the group are tested to determine whether they qualify as operating leases or finance
leases No finance leases were identified as a result of these tests

Operating leases — rental income from operating leases 1s recogmsed on a strasght ne basis over the term of
the relevant lease Imitial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are deferred and
recognised on a straight ine basis over the lease term

Dividends

Dwidend distributions to the companys shareholders are recogrised n the group s financial statements in the
period in which the dvidends are paid or approved by the company's shareholders
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2007 coninued

(x)

(y)

Segmental analysis

The group 1s managed as a single entity in one geographicat area with internal management reporiing prapared
on this basis and as such has not prepared a segmental analysis in accordance with IFRS 8

Underlying earnings

The directors beleve that analysing profit before tax between underlying earnings and capnal and other
provides addional usefu! information for members of the company The term underlying earnings 1s not a
defined term under IFRS and may not therefore be comparable with similarly titted profit measurements reported
by other companies The adjustments made to reported results are as follows

(i) Other income

The group has re-classified the disposal proceeds and releases of deferred income and surplus accruals
on huldings sod in prior penods due to the quantum and the fact that disposais occur infrequently

{n) Net revaluation gamns

The revaluation surplus on Investment properiies 1s included In the income statement but has been
re-classifled separately from the underlying resulis 1o enable members to better appreciate the operating
performance

() IAS 39 adjustments

The commercial effect of the group's hedging arrangemenits 1s that alt the group s inancial labiities are at
fixed rates However, certain of the hedges are deemed meffectrve and the income statement reflects the
effects of movements in the far values of these hedging instruments As this Introduces volatlity in the
income statement which will not be reflected in the cash flows of the group, the I1AS 38 adjustments have
been reclassified separately irom the underlying results

(v} Refinancing (costs)/gains
These items have been re-classified from underlying earnings due to ther size and infrequent occurrence

2 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of financial statemenis in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles reguires the use

of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financiai

statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses duning the reporting perncd  Although these

estimates are based on managemeni'’s best knowledge of the amount event or actions actual results ulimately may

differ from those estimates

(1} Construction contracts
Construction contracts are carriad at the lower of cost and net realisable value The latter is agsessed by the
group having regard to suitable external advice and knowledge of recent comparable transactions
Revenue on construchion contracts 1s recognised using the percentage cf completion method in accordance
with IAS 11 The directors have estmated the outcome of each contract on an indvidual basis and re-congider
these estimates at each balance sheet date

(ii} Trade receivables
The group 1s requrred to Judge when there 1s sufficient objective evidence to necessitate the imparrment of
ndividual rade recevables 1t does this on the basis of the age of the relevant receivables and external evidence
of the credit status of the debtor entity

(iii) Exceptional items
Exceptional tems are defined as those rtems which are sufficiently maternial by either therr size or nature as o
require separate disclosure Deciding which items meet the definition requires the group to exercise 1is
judgement
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Valuation of investment and development properties

The group uses the valuations performed by its independent valuers as the far value of its properties The
valuations are based upon assumptions including future rental iIncome, anticipated mantenance costs, the
appropriate discount rate, and, in the case of development properties, the estimated costs to completion The
valuers also make reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar properiies

Qutstanding rent reviews

Where the rent review dale has passed, and the revised annual rent has not yet been agreed, rent 1s accrued
from the date of the rent review based upon an estimation of the revised annual rent The estimate I1s derved
from knowledge of market rents for comparable properties

Turnover rents

Turnover rents are calculated based on tenant turnover in relevant units Tenant turnover 1 estimated based on
prior years or comparable tenants in the event that actual turnover numbers are not availlable

Financial instruments

The farr values of financial insiruments are determined by reference to the prices available on the markets on
which they are traded or by reference to valuations provided by counter party financial institutions

(viii) Vacant leasehold provisions

Under the terms of certain agreements for iease Canary Wharf Group committed to lease space on short term
sub-legses in calculabng the habiity under these sub-leases, assumptions are made mnciuding inter ala,
allowances for void periods and costs associated with re-letting the space and the leve! of future market rents

OPERATING PROFIT

Operating profit represents the consoldated profit of the group including the share of results of associates but before
net financing costs and taxation

2007 2006
£'000 £000
The operating profit 1s stated afier charging
— depreciation (Note 11) 353 180
— directors' emoluments (Note 10} 104 60
— amortisation of Investment in own shares - 459
- operating lease rentals
- land and buldings 10,253 4,752

The operating lease rentais relate 1o the vacant leasehold properties referred 1o in Note 22 and include the surrender
premium of £6 3m paid in the year Addmonal disclosure on operating leases 1 given in Note 9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2007 coninued

Remuneration of the auditors

2007 2006

£'000 £ 000
- audit fees 114 80
- audit of subsidiaries 37s 357
Total audit fees 492 437
Fees to the auditors for other services
- pursuant to legistation 198 60
- corporate finance transactions 72 130
—taxation 580 447
- other services 203 95
- pension fund audit 10 12
- other pension fund services - 40
Total non audit fees 1,062 784

Audit fees

Audit fees of £114,000 were incurred in 2007 of which £50,000 relaied to the audit of the consclidated accounts of
Canary Wharf Group (2006 - £80,000 and £45,000 respectively)

4 PERFORMANCE MEASURES
Earnings per share

2007 2006

Earmngs Per share Earnings Per share

£m p £m o]

Underlying profd before taxation 102 2 226 196 45
Capital and other tems 798 177 864 5 198 0
Taxation 238 53 (179 ) (410)
Total profit tor the year after taxation 2058 456 7050 1615
Less minority nterest (105 4) (23 3) (301 9) (69 2)
Profii after taxation ’ 100 4 223 403 1 823

Underlying earnings exclude gains on nvestment property revaluations, defered mcome on buildings sold n prior
periods, movements in the far value of inefiective hedging instruments and other dervatives, interesi payable on the
SG Shares, exceptional refinancing costs and gains and deferred taxation

Earnings per share has been calculated by reference 1o the profit attributable to equity shareholders of £100 4m for
2007 (2006 — £403 1m) and on the weighted average of 451 8m ordinary shares in 1ssue for 2007 (436 bm ordinary
shares n 1ssue for 2006) The numbers of ordinary shares exclude the SG Shares, D Share and B Shares held in
trust in connection with Canary Wharf Group s share option plan There were no dilutive instruments i issue at erther
date
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Adjusted NAV s calculated as follows

2007 2006

£m £m

Balance sheet net assets 2,347 7 2,3801
Add back deferred tax 168 6 1814
Mark to market of denvatives 725 538
Add surplus ansing on construction contracts 166 7 844
2,7555 26997
Minority interest in batance sheet (1,272 9} (1,151 7)
Minority interest on adjustments above (159 8) (125 3)
Re-classify SG Shares and D Share as equity 306 1426
Add back accrued finance charges on SG Shares and D Share 15 593
Adjusted net assets 1,354 9 16246
Adjusted NAV per share £215 £2 64

Adjusted NAV per share includes the external valuation surplus on construction contracts of £255 8m (31 December
2006 - £84 4m) less the profit recognised on such contracts of £89 1m (3t December 2006 — £nil} and fair value
adjustments on dervaiives and deiferred taxation In addiion, in armving at adjusted net assets the SG Shares and
untif it was redeemed, the D Share, are treated as equity whereas in the balance sheet the SG Shares are treated as
a debt instrument and the D Share as a dernvative

At 31 December 2007 the number of shares i 1ssue was 630 6m (31 December 2006 - 616 im)
In January 2007 14,478,260 B Shares were 1ssued in exchange for the cancellation of the dividend and distribution

nghts aftaching to the D Share The impact of this 1ssue on NAV per share at 31 December 2006 would have been
o reduce adjusted NAV per share by 6p to £2 58

REVENUE
2007 2006
m £m
Rent receivable 2753 2557
Recogrised incentives, commitied rent increases and leiting fees 241 244
2994 280 1
Service charge income 622 536
Miscellaneous ncome 248 267
Construction contract revenue 2384 764
Gross development, rental and related income 6248 4368
Service charge and other direct property expenses (87 3) {822}
Mavement In provisions relating {o leasehold commitments (26) 47
Construchion contract expenditure (149 3) {76 4}
Net development, rental and related income 3856 2829

tn 2007 the group had two major cusiomers each contnibuting in excess of 10 0% of group revenue totalling £109 2m
and £74 8m (2006 — three major customers contributing £47 6m, £46 4m and £45 2m)

in 2007 Canary Whari Group recewved deferred proceeds totaling £8 3m relating to the sale of two bulldings in 2003
and released surplus accruals and deferred income of £10 9m relaiing to previously disposed properties These
amounts have been classified as other income within capital and other in the consolidated income statement
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2007 contnved

6 NET REVALUATION GAINS ON PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS

2007 2006
£m £m
In iIncome statement
Revaluation of investment properties 1104 7221
In consolidated statement of recognised income and expense
Revaluation of development and construction properiles 228 1729
1332 8950
Share of associated undertakings’ revaluation of development properties 03 -
1335 8950
7 NET FINANCING COSTS
2007 2006
£m £m
Interest revenue
Beposits and securiies 534 46 1
Interest expense
Notes and debentures (157 0) {151 2)
Songbird loans (55 6} (39 1)
Other bank loans and overdrafts (78 6) (78 3)
Oblhgations under finance leases (2 1) 44)
(293 3) (273 0)
Development interest capitalised 18 07
(291 5) (272 3)
Underlying net financing costs (238 1) (226 2)
Other financing {costs)income relating to denvatives
Valuation movements on fair vaiue of denvatives 47 337
Valuation movernents on translation of foreign currency debt 33 229
Valuation movement on fair value of D Share (25) (17 2)
Finance costs of SG Shares {Note 21) (52) {12 9)
Hedging reserve recyclng (35 8) (7 4)
{35 5) 191
Net financing expenses (273 6) (207 1)
Refinancing {costs)/gains
Refinancing fees (143) -
Gains relating to finance lease repayment - 1233
Net financing costs (287 9) (83 8)
Total financing ncome 534 461
Total financing expenses {341 3) (129 9)
Net financing costs (287 9) (83 8)
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Financing fees included in interest payable totalied £18 1m in 2007 (2006 - £17 1m)

The financing expenses of the construction loan facility have been capitalised as mmcurred since first drawn down in
2007 In 2006 interest on development expendriure financed from general funds was capitalised to properties under
construction at a rate of 6 2% being the weighted average cost of debt of the relevant loan facilities and included in
additions to properties under construction in Note 11

Refinancing fees in 2007 comprised the write-off of £13 6m deferred fees on certain of the notes repaid on the
restructuring of Canary Wharf Group'’s securitigation and breakage fees paid totalling £0 7m

DBuring 2006 Canary Wharf Group recognised gains on the acquisition of finance leases totalling £123 3m

TAXATION

2007 2006

£m £m

Tax charge
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 238 (1792 1}
Group total taxation 238 (1791}
Tax reconcihiation
Group profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1820 884 1
Tax on profit on ordinary activities at UK corporation tax rate of 30% (54 6) (265 2)
Effects of
Indexation of capital gaing and movement on deferred tax provisions 702 965
Change In corporation tax rate 94 -
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes {12) (10 4)
Group total taxation 238 (179 1)

The tax charge for both periods relates solely 1o deferred tax

No provision for corporation tax has been made in the consolidated results of the group for 2007 or 2006 due to tax
losses ansing in the year the avallability of tax losses brought forward from previous penods and other tax relefs
avallable It 1s anticipated that remaining capital losses and other tax reliefs including EZAs, will reduce future tax
charges

Losses & Revaluation  Fair value of Fiancial

tax credits deficols  dernvatives  mnslruments Qther Total
£m £m £m tm £m £m

Deferred tax assets
1 January 2006 2772 100 600 407 16 3885
{Charge)/credit to income (121 6} 115 (79 (2 5) (0 6) (121 1)
Charge 1o equity - (2 4} (586) - - (80)
31 December 2006 1556 191 46 5 382 10 2604
(Charge)/credit 1o income (49 2} 30 (237) (4 9) - (74 8)
Credit to equity - - 03 - - 03
31 December 2007 106 4 221 231 333 10 1859
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2007 conunued

Potenual EZA  Revaluaton  Fair value of Financial

clawback surpluses  denvatives  insiruments Cther Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Deferred tax liabilities
1 January 2006 (14) {286 6) - 43 1) - (331 1)
(Charge)/credst to income (111 7) 58 8 (02) (49) - (58 0)
Credit 1o equity - (49 4) (33) - - (527)
31 December 2006 (113 1) (277 2) (35) (48 0) - {441 8)
Credit 10 income 367 248 136 235 - 986
Charge to equity - (11) {102) - - (113)
31 December 2007 {76 4) {253 5) {01) (24 5) - (354 5)

All deferred tax assets and habidities may potentially be offset The amount at which deferred tax 1s stated, after
offseting for financial reporting purposes, comprises

£m
31 December 2006 {181 4)
Credit to iIncome 238
Charge to equity (110)
31 December 2007 (168 6)

It has not been possible 1o determing the amounts which will crysiallise within one year as reguired by IFRS as it 1s
not possible to determine which properties, if any will be sold in the next financial year

A deferred tax asset has been recognised on the mark 1o market of debt and other adjustments relaung to Canary
Wharf Group's tax position at the date of acquisition These deferred tax balances will be amortised 1o the income
statement In line with the amortisation of the farr value adjustments which gave nse to them

9 OPERATING LEASES
Cperating leases with the group as lessor
Canary Wharf Group leases oui its investment properties under operaing leases In accordance with IFRS 1 and
IAS 17 the group has reviewed the classification of all leases In reviewing the leases, land and buildings were
considered separately using the approach recommended by the BPF in guidance notes on the application of IFRS
n a UK context This review did not identify any leases which need 10 be treated as finance leases
At 31 December 2007 the weighted average unexpired lease term under non-cancelatle operating leases for the
entire Investment property portfolio was 15 3 years (31 December 2006 - 16 5 years} The future aggregate minimum
rentals recevable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows
2007 2006
£m £m
Within one year 2807 260 i
Between two and five years 1,124 1 41,0810
After five years 39909 41808
53857 55219
The above analysis does not Include any contingent rental income
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Operating leases with the group as lessee

Future mimimum rentals payable under operating leases on land and bulldings are analysed as follows

2007 2006

£m £m

Within one year 13 48
In the second to fifth years inclusive 03 34
After five years - _
16 82

At 31 December 2007 the above rentals relate 1o a lease which expires in 2008 (Note 22) At 31 December 2006 the
rentals relate 1o two leases, one of which expires in 2009 and the other of which was surrendered in 2007

DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES
With the exception of fees paid to the independent non-executive chairman, all other staff costs relate to employees

(m

of Canary Wharf Group

Statf costs - all employees of the group, including directors
2007 2006
£m m
Wages and salares 856 458
Social secunty costs 65 52
Other pension costs 30 26
651 536

2

The average monthly number of employees, ncluding Canary Wharf Group, durnng 2007 was 870 (2006 - 761)
as set out below

2007 2006

Construction 205 114
Property management 525 517
Administration 140 130
870 761

A deferred cash incentive plan has been established to retain and incentivise the executive directors and senior
employees of Canary Whart Group Payments under this plan were made in 2006 and 2007 Further payments
are inked 1o participants remaning employed by the group and to two sets of performance related milestones
which Include leasing, tinancial and operational targets

Directors’ remuneration

2007 2006
£'000 £ 000
Emoluments 104 50

No penston plan 1s oparated by the company and none of the directors participate in Canary Wharl Group s
pension plans
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(3)

(4)

Highest paid director
2007 2006
£°000 £000
Emoluments 104 60

Directors' share options

No executive share optien plan has been adopted by the company and none of the directors of the company
participate in Canary Whart Group's share option pian

Key management

The business of the company 1s the management of its investment in Canary Wharf Group The overall business
decisions of the company are managed by the board and iis committees, in particular the Executive Committee,
with the day to day planning, directing and controling activities deall with by the directors on this committee
which represent the company shareholders With the exception of the chairman whose remuneration s
discioged in Notes (2) and (3} above, neng of the company directors are remuneraled directly or indirectly by
the company

Pension schemes

Canary Wharf Group currently operates two defined contribution pension schemes The assets of these
schemes are held in independantly administered funds The pension cost charge which amounted to £3 0m in
2007 (2006 — £2 6m} represents contnbutions payable by Canary Wharf Group to the schemes The company
does not operate a pension scheme
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INVESTMENT, DEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION PROPERTIES AND PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Non current assets and construction contracts at 31 December 2006 comprised

Develop-  Properties Con-
Investment ment under con- struction Plant &
properties  properties struclion  contracts Total equiprment Total
£m m £m £m fm £m £m

Market value at 1 January 2006 53015 3570 - - 5,658 5
Adjust for brought forward
- fenant incentives” {130 7} - - - (130 7)
- unamorised lease

negotiation costs” (27) - - - 27}
Carrying value at 1 January 2006 5,168 1 3570 - - 5,525 1 24 5,527 5
Additions 94 254 55 3 74 C1 715
Transfers - (107 Q) 554 535 19 (19 -
Revaluations
— (N ncome statement 7221 - - - 7221 - 7221
— in statement of recognised

ncome and expense - 1395 334 - 1729 - 1729
Transfer 10 tenant iIncentives and
deferred negotiation costs {4 0) - - - (40) - (40)
Transfer to cost of sales - - - (76 4) (76 4) - (76 4)
Transfer to payments on account - - - (8 2) (82) - (82)
Depreciation - - -~ - - (0 2) 02)
Carrying value at
31 December 2006 5,895 6 4149 943 - 6,4048 04 64052
Adjust for
— tenant Incentives” 1591 - - - 1591
— unamontised lease

negobation costs™ 37 01 07 - 45
Market value at
31 December 2006 6,058 4 4150 950 - 6,568 4

* Refer to Note 14 for further details
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Non current assets and construction contracts at 31 December 2007 comprised

Develop- Properties Con-
Investment ment under con- struction Plant &
properlies  properties struction  contracts Total equipment Total
£m £m £m £m £m cm £m
Market value at 1 January 2007 60584 4150 950¢ - 6,568 4
Adjust for brought forward
- tgnant Incentives” (159 1) - - - (159 1)
- unamertised lease
negotiation costs” (37) (0 1) (07} -~ (45)
Carrying value at 1 January 2007 58956 4149 94 3 - 6,4048 04 6,405 2
Additions 167 282 361 1256 2066 09 2075
Transfers** - - (45 0) 450 - - -
Revaluations
- In Income statement 1104 - - - 1104 - 1104
- In statement of recognised
ncome and expense - 89 139 - 228 - 228
Transfer to tenant incentives and
deferred negotiation costs (33) - - - (33) - (33)
Transfer to cost of sales - - - (149 3) (149 3) - (149 3)
Transfer to payments on account - - - (213) (213) - (21 3)
Depreciation - - - - - 04 {0 4)
Carrying value at
31 December 2007 6,019 4 4520 883 -  B6,5707 09 65716
Adjust for
- tenant Incentives™ 186 5 - - - 1865
—unamortised lease
negotiation costs™ 54 - 07 - 61
Market value at
31 December 2007 6,211 3 4520 1000 -  6,7633

* Refer to Note 14 for further details

™ |n June 2007 Canary Wharf Group entered into an agreement for the sale of 30 North Colonnade and received an initial payment
of £165 4m which has been treated as a payment on account The carrying value of the site of £45 Om has been transferred from
properties under construchion held for investment to construction contracts At 31 December 2007 the carrying values of this and
the other propertes accounted for ag construction contracls are staled net of amounts taken 1o cost of sales or cffset against

payments on account In accerdance with 1AS 11

Valuation

The far value of Canary Wharf Group’s properties has been arnved at on the basis of valuations carned out by

external valuers, CBRE, Savills or Cushiman as at 31 December 2007 The valuations, which conform to International

Valuation Standards, were arrived ai by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties

The properties have been valued indmdually and not as part of a portfollo and no allowance has been made for
expenses of realisation or for any taxation which might arise The valuations reflect usual deductions in respect of
purchasers ¢costs and, in particuiar, full hability for UK Stamp Duty as applicable at the valuation date

Cumulative interest capitatised in development properties at 31 December 2007 amounted to £2 5m (31 December

2006 - £0 7m) Included m investiment properties 1s an amount of £30 5m (31 December 2006 — £30 1m) i respect

of property occupied by the group which 1n the opinion of the directors s not matenal for separate classification
The historical cost of properties held as non current assets was £4 511 9m (31 December 2006 — £4,460 6m)
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Construction contracts comprise amounts recoverable under long term development contracts less payments on
account The amounts for payments on account at the balance sheet date are as follows

20 Churchill 15 Canada 30 North
Place Square Colonnade Totat
£m em 'm £m
Advances receved 1823 az5 - 2748
Contract revenue recognised as revenue in the income
staternent (356) (40 8) - (76 4)
Offset from construction contracts {63) (19) - 82)
Deferred interest 52 02 - 54
31 December 2006 1456 500 - 1956
Advances receved 229 856 1805 2890
Coniract revenue recognised as revenue
in the ncome statement (109 2} (54 4) (74 8) (238 4)
Qifset from construction contracts 42 (6 5) (190) (21 3)
Deferred interest 29 20 - 49
Gross amount due to customers for contract
work at 31 December 2007 66 4 767 867 2298
Cumulative amounts accounted for as construction contracis are ag follows
£m
Advances received 5638
Recogrised as revenue (314 8)
Offset from construction contracts (29 5)
Deterred interest 103
2298

No retentions were held by customers for contract work at either 31 December 2007 or 31 December 2006

2007 Report & Financial Statements

43



Songhbud Estates plc

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2007 coninued

12

INVESTMENTS
The investments balance comprises
2007 20086
fm £m
Shares 73 06
Redeemable notes ' 155 110
228 116
Fees on acquisiion 26 19
Share of post acquisition losses (10) (07)
Share of farr value movement on dernvaiives (11) -
Share of revaluation surplus on development properties 03 -
236 128

The fair values of all eguity secunties are based on the net assets of those companies adjusted for the farr values of
assets and habiities

Investments comprise

2007 2006
£m £m
Associates 234 126
Cther investments 02 0z
236 128
Associated undertakings

Details of the group s associates at 31 December 2007 are as follows
Date of Country of Ownership
acquisilion incorporation interest
%
WWLP April 2005 UK 25
Drapers Gardens entites June 2007 Netherlands/Jersey 20

In Aprit 2006 BWB appointed Canary Whar! Group together with Ballymore as its partner far the development of
Wood Whart WWLP has been established 1o oversee the development of an approximately 6 5m sq ft (gross} mixed
use scheme in which Canary Wharf Group has a 25 0% effective interest Canary Wharf Group subscribed for £1,000
of equity share capital In the partners of WWLP and has provided, in additton, interest free long term loans to fund
the working cap#al requirements of WWLP and which are repayable out of development profis The funding of
WWLP has been accounted for as an investment i an associated undertaking

WWLP has entered into & loan faciity of £9 Om, repayable mn 2010 of which £5 2m had been drawn down at
31 Decembper 2007 (31 December 2006 - £mily Canary Wharf Group has also loaned £15 5m {0 WWLP in the torm
of redeemable notes which are interest free and redeemanle at par in 2030 The £8 Om loan referred 10 above must
first be repaid before ihe loan providad to WWLP by Canary Wharf Group can be repaid All ipans must have been
repaid 1n full prior to any dividends being declared

In June 2007 Canary Whart Group entered nto a joint venture with MSREF V and Exemplar to undertake the
redevelopment of Drapers Gardens Canary Whart Group has invested £6 7m and incurred jees of €0 7m in
consideration for a 20 0% stake in the Crapers Gardens redevelopment structure The investment has been
accounted for as an investment in an associated undertaking
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Both the WWLP and the Drapers Gardens entities have 31 December year ends The results of WWLP and Drapers
Gardens atirnibutable to Canary Wharf Group have been denved from their management accounts after making any
necessary IFRS adjustrments The group s share of profits and losses of associate underiakings 1s as follows

Summarnsed profit and loss accounts for 2006

Drapers
WWLP Gardens Total
£m £m £m
Other expenses (07 - (07
Net financing costs 04) - 04
Net underlying loss before and after tax (11} - (11)
Group share {0 3) - (0 3)
Summansed profit and loss accounts for 2007
Drapers
WWLP Gardens Total
£m £m £m
Cther expenses {t5) - (15)
Net tinancing costs - (52) (52)
Net underlying loss before and after tax {15) (52) (67)
Group share {0 4) {(10) (14)
Summansed balance sheels at 31 December 2006
Drapers
WWLP Gardens Total
£m £m £m
Total assets 923 - 2933
Total habiliies (56 2) - (56 2)
Net assets 431 - 431
Group share 107 - 107
Summarnised balance sheets at 31 December 2007
Drapers
WWLP Gardens Total
£m £m £
Total assets 1018 106 0 2078
Total habilities (42 8} (72 1) (114 9)
Net assets 580 339 929
Group share 147 68 215

The garrymg value of the group's investment in WWLP includes an iniial entry premium (plus expenses) of £1 9m
together with the group s share of the net assets of WWLP
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Other 1nvestments

Canary Wharf Group owns 52 079 0 1p B preferred ordinary shares and 72 060 0 1p ordinary shares in HSO, an
unlisied company registered In England and Wales, being approximately 13 0% of its nominal share capital The
principal acivity of HSO 1s the provision of broadband telecommunications services The far value of this investment
on acguisition of Canary Wharf Group was £0 6m During 2006 the carrying value of the investment was written down
to £0 2m (afier a total provision of £0 4m), based on the net asset value of HSO at that date and continues to be
carried at that amount

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2007 2006
£m £m
Trade receivables 104 60
Other recevables 327 105
Prepayments and accrued income 241 325
Total trade and other recewables 672 430

In determining the recoverability of trade recewvables the group considers any change in the credit quality of the
recevables on an indwvidual basis from the date the trade receivable was created 1o the date the accounts were
approved Credit nsk 1s reducad due to Canary Wharf Group's properties baing under lease to high quality tenants
In addition rents and service charges are inveiced quarterly in advance

At 31 December 2007 trade recevables included one trade debtor of £5 1m representing 42 0% of trade recevabies
at that date This amount was settled in full subsequent to the year end Other than this amount, no amount owed by
any other trade debtor exceeded £1 Om at either 31 December 2007 or 31 December 2006 Trade receivables more
than 61 days past due at 31 December 2007 totalled £2 9m (31 December 2006 — £1 8m) No bad or doubtful debt
provisions were made at either 31 December 2007 or 31 December 2006

Prepayments and accrued income exclude the cumulative adjustment in respect of lease incentives (Note 14)

TENANT INCENTIVES AND DEFERRED NEGOTIATION COSTS
Lease incentives include rent free periods and cther incentives given to lesseeas on entering into lease arrangements

Other Deferred

Rent free ienant negotiation
periods Incentives cosis Total
£m £m £m £m
1 Jarnuary 2006 677 630 27 1334
Transfer from investment properties (Note 11) - 40 - 40
Recognition of rent during rent free penods 27 4 - - 274
Amorusation - (30 - {30)
Deferred lease negotiation costs {net) - - 18 18
31 December 2008 951 640 45 163 6
Transfer from investment properties (Note 11} - 33 - 33
Recognition of rent dunng rent free penods 299 - - 289
Amaortisation (17} (41) {0 9) (687)
Deferred lease negotiation costs (net) - - 25 25
31 December 2007 1233 63 2 61 192 6

46

2007 Report & Financial Statements



15

16

Songbird Estates plc

MONETARY DEPOSITS

Monetary deposits comprise amounts held on deposit with oniginal matunties in excess of three months These
deposits are charged, relate to Canary Wharf Group's constructicn contracts and mature over the life of those

contracts
2007 2006
£m £m
Monetary deposits held at bank 1159 1430
Accrued contractual interest on monetary deposiis held at bank 25 45
118 4 147 5

The efiective interest rate on monetary deposits was 5 2% at 31 December 2007 (31 December 2006 ~ 4 7%)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents comprise

2007 2006

£m £m

Unsecured cash 8567 7125
Collateral for borrowings 1440 1452
Security for obligations 198 247
1,020 5 882 4

The effective interast rate on short term deposits at 31 December 2007 was 6 2% (31 December 2006 - 5 0%) and

the deposits had an average matunity of 34 days (31 December 2006 — 64 days)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the group and short term bank deposits with an oniginal maturity

of three months or less The carrying amount of these assets approximates therr far value

The group's callateral for borrowings can be analysed by the borrowings 1o which it relates as follows

2007 2008

Em £m

Securitised debt 76 3 812
Secured loans 253 216
Finance leases 42 4 42 4
1440 1452

Ot the cash collateral disclosed above, all of ihe secured loans balance and £45 7m of the secuntised debt balance

(31 December 2006 - £21 1m} represent rental payments from tenants recelved in advance

The balance of cash collateral for borrawings disclosed above 1s held to reduce the exposure of the lenders to
certain nsks such as cash collateralising the group s exposure on vacant property These amounts are released from

charge as and when such rnisks are eiiminated in accordance with the terms of the notes

The finance lease hability 1s fully cash coliateralised, and the cash collateral balance compares with a carrying value

of the finance lease habilty for accounts purposes of £41 6m (31 December 2006 — £42 O0m)
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18

2007 2006

£m £m

Trade payables 203 135
Taxation and social secunty costs 82 53
Gther payables 376 308
Other accruals 731 837
Deferred income 807 550
Payments on account {Note 11) 2208 1956
Total trade and other payables 4497 3839

Trade and other payables includes £77 Om of financial labiities at 31 December 2007 (31 December 2006 —
£60 4m) These amounts are all payable on demand

Trade creditors and accruals principally comprise amounts cutstanding for trade purchases and construction costs
The average credit perod taken for trade purchases 1s 22 days (31 December 2006 - 27 days) For those suppliers
that do charge interest, no interest 1s charged on the trade payables for the first 28 days from the date of the invoice
Thereafter interest 1s charged on the outstanding balances at various interesi rates which are determined by
reference to the terms of each such agreement The group has financial sk management policies in place 1o ensure
that all payables are paid within the credit tmeframe The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade
payables approximates to therr farr value

CURRENT PORTION OF LONG TERM BORROWINGS
Current portion of long term borrowings comprises

2007 2006

£m £m

Accrued interest payable 463 226
Repayable within one year
- securiiised debt 69 150
- securad loans 71 66
Financing costs of SG Shares 15 87
D Share denvative liability - 506
Long term borrowings repayable within one year 618 103 5

The terms of the groups loan facilities are summarised m Note 21

48

2007 Report & Financial Statements




19

20

Songhird Estates plc

BORROWINGS

Non current hability borrowings comprise
2007 2008
£m £m
Securitised debt 2,664 1 24761
Songhbird loans 8318 5186
Secured loans 1,241 8 1,248 2
Construction loan 350 _
Finance lease obligations 416 420
4,814 3 4,284 9
5G Shares 306 142 6
4,844 9 4,427 5

The terms of the group's loan facifies are summansed in Note 21

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Hedge accounting

The group uses nterest rate swaps and interest rate caps to hedge exposure 10 the vanability in cash flows on
floating rate debt including its bank facilites and floating rate bonds caused by movements in market rates of
interest At 31 December 2007 the far value of these denvatives resulted in the recognition of a net liability of £94 Om
(31 December 2006 — £143 5m) Of this net hability, an asset of £0 1m and a liabihity of £23 3m was in respect of
Interest rate swaps which qualify for hedge accounting (31 December 2006 - £11 2m and £0 3m respectively) and
an asset of £0 2m and a hability of £71 Om was 0 respect of interest rate swaps and collars which do not qualify for
hedge accounting (31 December 2006 — £0 3m and £154 7m respectively)

2007 2006
£m £m
Agsels
Secuntisaticn - 586
Songbird loans 02 3
Other secured loans g1 56
03 115
Liabilities
Securitisation (21 0) (87 9)
Songbird loans (121) -
Other secured loans (57 3) (67 1}
Construction loan (39) -
(94 3) (1550}
{84 0) (143 5)
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Matunty of the group’s financial derivatives

The following tables show the undiscounted cash (inflows) and outflows In relation to the group s denvative financial
Instruments based on the group’s prediction of fulure movements N interest rales

Other Total
Securinsed Songbird secured Constuction derivative Dervative

debt loan loans loan labilities assets Total

€m £m £m Em £m em £m

Within one year 11 ~ 15 - 26 09 35
In one to two years 10 - 11 - 21 09 30
In two to {ive years 42 - 58 - 100 21 121
In five 10 ten years ARy - 222 - 332 04 336
In ten to twenty years 165 - 630 - 795 (38) 757
In twenty to thirty years 1C - 401 - 411 (0 4) 407
31 December 2006 348 - 1337 - 1685 01 168 6

Other Totat
Socuritised Songbird secured  Construction derivative Derwvative

debt loan ioans foan habilibes assets Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Within one year (6 0} 16 (42) (01) 87) {18) (10 5)
In one to two years 08 91 52 09 160 11 171
In two to five years {12) 64 1086 - 158 08 16 6
In five to ten years 0z - 185 - 187 - 187
In ten to twenty years 324 - 471 - 795 - 795
In twenty to thirty years 718 - 311 - 1029 - 1029
31 December 2007 980 171 108 3 08 2242 01 2243

The mpact of changes in interasi rates would be on interest recevable since substantially ail borrowings are subject
1o Interest rate swaps or collars and all cash deposits are at floating rates However, the income statement 1S also
impacted by changes in the farr value of dervatives that are not considered effective for accounting purposes
A 0 5% higher/(lower) paralle! shift in the interest rate curve used to value the derivatives with all other vanables held
constant, would have increasedf{decreased} the groups proft for 2007 by £60 Om/Z(66 O)m (2006 -
£47 6m/e(51 9)m respectively} Other equity reserves would have increased/(decreased) by £48 6m/Z(52 1)m
(2006 - £22 7m/L{23 6)m respectively) The 0 5% sensiivity has been selected based on the direciors’ view of a
reasonable interest rate curve movement assumptlion
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21 NET DEBT

2007 2006
£m £m
Securitised debt 27239 25773
Songhird loans 8437 522 6
Other secured lvans 1,3594 1,330 7
Finance lease obligaticns 416 420
4,968 6 4,472 6
SG Shares and asscclated financing costs 321 1513
D Share denvative llability - 506
Gross debt 5,0007 46745
Current habilities 618 1035

Non current habilihes
- borrowings 4,844 9 44275
- derivatives included in non current assets (03) (115)
~ dervatives ncluded in non current llabiliies 943 1550
Gross debt 5,0007 46745
Cash and cash eguivalents (1,020 5) {882 4)
Monetary deposits (118 4) (147 5)
Net debt 3,861 8 36446

As a resuit of the redempuon nghts attaching to the SG Shares, such shares are ciassifed as borrowings and the
ncome statement includes a charge to profit in respect of the SG Shares accumulated at 8 0% per annum, subject
to increases in the coupon to a maximum of 100% in certain crrcumstances The accrued finance charges
{comprising dvidends accrued but not declared or paid) in respect of thig class of share are included in current
portion of long term kabilities as interest payable (Note 18) At 31 December 2007 £1 5m was accrued In respect of
the SG Shares (31 December 2006 — £8 7m)

Prior to the share capital amendments approved in January 2007, the D Share carned an entitlement 10 a dividend
for each year in the five year penod commencing 1 July 2004 hased on 20 0% of the ncremental increase in the
value of Canary Wharf Group's retail assets As a result of this entitlement the D Share was treated as a dernvative
and was stated at its estimated fair value within current labiliies The estimated fair value at 31 December 2006 was
£50 6m Movements In the estimated farr value pror to conversion to B Shares were charged to the income
statement as financing costs

On 26 January 2007 the dvidend nights on the D Share were cancelled in exchange for 14,478 260 B Shares that
had a market value of £53 1m, resuling n a charge to the ncome statement n 2007 of £25m Following the
exchange for B Shares the D Share was redeemed
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The amounts at which borrowings are stated, ncluding share capital reclassified as debt comprise

Other Finance
Secunhsed  Songlird secwred  Construc- lease Total $SGandD
aght loan loans  uon loan obligations DOrrowngs Shares Toal
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
1 January 2007 25773 5226 13307 - 420 447286 2019 46745
Drawn down in year 7260 8302 - 349 - 15911 - 1,5811
Effective interest rate adjustment {10 8) (33) 10 (16) - (14 7) - (147
Accrued finance charges (14) 289 [(eh! 17 4 27 (47) (20)
Repaid in perod (5814)y (5209) (6 8) - - (1,1091) (1120) (1,221 1)
Release of D Share hability - - - - - - (53 1) (53 1)
Movements in fair value of
dernvatives and foreign
exchange 05 122 (4 3) 39 - 123 - 123
Charges on loan repayment 137 - - - - 137 - 137
31 December 2007 2,723 9 8437 1,3205 389 416 4,9686 321 50007

Payable within one year
or on demand 388 - 215 - - 603 15 618
Payable n more than one year 2664 1 8318 12418 350 416 48143 3C6 48449
Derwvatives classified as
— non current assets - 02) (O 1} - - (0 3) - {0 3}
- non current habilites 210 121 573 39 -~ 94 3 - 94 3

2,723 9 8437 13205 389 416 4,986 321 5,0007

All the borrowings of Canary Whari Group are secured agamnst designated property interests of Canary Wharf Group
The Songhird loan 1s secured against the assets of the company and the shares Iin 1is subsidiaries

in May 2007 £800 Om was drawn down under a new £880 Om faciity which was used to fund repayment of the
£5230 9m outstanding under an existing Songbird loan The new loan has a term of three years and carnes an interest
rate of LIBOR plus a margin of 1 2% to 1 7% dependent on the financial condition of the group The new ioan 1s
hedged via an interest swap and cap which serves to fix LIBOR for the amount drawn at 5 928% An additional
£30 2m had been drawn down by 31 December 2007

in Apnl 2007 Canary Wharf Group completed a restructuring of its secuntisation involving the redemption of £572 6m
of FRNs and the 1ssue of £726 Om of new non-amortising FRNs The new notes 1ssued compnsed £220 O0m of A7
MNotes, £104 Om of B3 Notes, £275 Om of C2 Notes and £125 0m of D2 Noteg All of the notes have a maturity of
Octobar 2037

Interest on the new notes 1s at three month LIBOR plus a margin The margins on the notes are A7 Notes - 0 19%
per annum, increasing to 0 475% in January 2017, B3 Notes — 0 28% per annum increasing to 0 7% per annum in
January 2017, C2 iNotes - 0 55% per annum, ncreasing to 1 375% in Aprl 2014, and D2 Notes — 0 84% per annum
increasing to 2 1% in Apnt 2014

All of the notes are hedged by means of interest rate swaps and the hedged rates plus the margin are A7 Notes —
5 1135%, B3 Notes - 5 1625%, C2 Notes - 5 4416% and D2 Notes ~ 5 8006%

52

2007 Report & Financial Statements




Songbird Estates plc

At 31 December 2007 the following notes 1issued by a subsidiary of Canary Wharf Group were outstanding

Principat
Tranche £m Interest Repayment
Al 1,2150 6 455% By mnstalment from 2009 to 2033
A3 4000 5952% By insialment from 2032 to 2037
A7 2220 Floating By instatment from 2035 to 2037
B 2177 6 B00% By instaiment from 2005 to 2033
B3 1040 Floating By instalment from 2035 to 2037
c2 2750 Floating By instalment from 2035 to 2037
D2 1250 Floating By instalment from 2035 to 2037

25587

In February 2007 Canary Wharf Group entered into a £155 0m 3 year construction loan facility secured on 5 Churchill
Ptace Interest 1s charged at LIBOR plus a margin of 0 8% hedged at 5625% At 31 December 2007 £36 6m
including interest had been drawn down under this faciity

A bank loan faciity of £608 8m 1s secured aganst One Churchill Place The Joan 1s fully amortsing with a final
maturity :n July 2034 The loan cammes a hedged interest rate of 5 82% Dunng 2007 £6 8m of the loan was amortised
in accordance with the loan agreement reducing the principal at 31 Dscembar 2007 to £5681 1m

Canary Wharf Group has a £369 4m bank loan facility secured aganst 10 Cabot Square and 20 Cabot Square The
loan carries interest at a rate of 5 82% and 1s repayable n 2013 The loan remains on a fixed interest basis until April
2008 when t becomes floating rate Canary Wharf Group has entered into a forward staring interest rate swap irom
Apri 2008 10 January 2013 at a fixed rate of 5031%

In March 2006 Canary Whar{ Group entered inte a £300 0m facility secured aganst Canary Wharf Group's principal
retall properties The retall loan facility carmnes interest at LIBOR plus a vanable margin rate subject to, mier alia,
prevailing loan to value and interest cover ratio tests At 31 December 2007 the margin was set at 55 bps Canary
Wharf Group has entered into an arrangement whereby the exposure to the movement in three month LIBOR rates
on the faciity was fully hedged with a fixed interest rate swap at 5 15%

Canary Wharf Group s obligations under 1is finance lease are secured over the property that 1S subject to the finance
lease and over certain cash deposits (Note 16}
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Maturity profile of borrowings

Other Finance
Securtised Songhird secured  Construchon lease 5G
cebt loans loans loan  obligatons Shares Total
£m om £m £m £m &m £m
Contractual undiscounted
cash flows at
31 Becember 2006
Within one year 1659 375 786 - 21 - 2841
In one to two years 165 4 5354 809 - 21 - 7838
In two to five years 6028 - 5236 - 62 2630 1,402 6
In five 1O ten years 1044 2 - 5847 - 104 - 16400
In ten to twenty years 17199 - 3507 - 339 - 2,104 5
In twenty to thirty years 1,1145 - 427 9 - 323 - 16747
48204 5729 2046 4 - 870 263 0 77887
Compnsing
Principal repayments 24142 5209 12670 - 420 1437 4,387 8
Interest payments 24062 520 7794 - 450 119 3 3,401 9
48204 5729 2046 4 - 870 2630 7.7897
Other Finance
Secuntised Songhbird secured  Construction lease SG
debt loans loans Ibarn  oblgations Shares Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Contractual undiscounted
cash flows at
31 December 2007
Within one year 1687 612 86 0 - 21 - 3180
N one to two years 186 5 683 734 417 21 - 3720
In two to five years 6186 8958 497 9 - 62 425 20610
In five 1o ten years 9978 - 557 8 - 104 - 15660
In ten to twenty years 1,637 3 - 3666 - 372 - 20411
in twenty to thirty years 1,834 8 - 3955 - 26 % - 22572
54437 1,025 3 1,977 2 447 849 425 8,6153
Comprising
Principal repayments 25587 8302 12603 366 416 314 4,758 8
Interest payments 2,8850 195 1 7169 51 433 111 3,856 5
54437 1,025 3 19772 Nz 849 425 86153

The above tables contain undiscounted cash flows (including interest) and therefore result in higher Balances than
the carrying values or fair values of the borrowings

Debt service
The weighted average interest rates paid dunng the year were as follows

2007 2006

Yo Y

Securntisations 624 620
Songhird foans 770 736
Cther secured loans 583 586
Construction loan 6 54 -
Finance lease 493 493
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2007 2006
Market Carrying Market Carrying
value amount Ditference value amaount Difference
£m £m £m £m m £m

Securitisations {2,594 8) {2,702 9) 1081 (2583 7) (2,495 0) (887)
Songbud loan (831 8) (631 8) - {522 9) {522 9) -
Secured loans {1,261 0) (1,263 3) 23 (1,265 B) {1,269 2) 36
Construction loan (35 0) (35 0) - - - -
Finance leases {41 6) (41 6) - (42 0) (42 ) -
SG Shares (318 0) (321) (285 9) {617 5) (151 3) (466 2)
D Share - - - (50 6) {50 6) -

(5,082 2) (4,906 7) (175 5) (5,082 3) {4,531 0) (551 3)
Other financial assets/(habilites)
- interest rate dervative assats 03 03 - 15 115 -
— interest rate derivative liabiliies (94 3) (94 3) - (155 0) (158 0) -
Cash and monetary depostts 1,138 9 1,389 - 1,028 9 1,029 9 -

(4,037 3) (3,861 8) (175 5) (4,195 9) (3,644 6) (551 3)

The differences above are shown before any tax relief Short term receivables and payables have been excluded
from these disclosures as their carrying amount approximates fair value The fair value of the sterling denocminated
fixed rate bonds has been determined by reference 1o the prices avallable on the markets on which they are traded
The fair vatues of other debt instruments have heen calculated by discounting cash flows at the relevant zero coupon
LIBCR interest rates prevailing at the balance sheet date The far value of the SG Shares has been derived by
reference 10 the market value of the B Shares, although the rights atiaching to the SG Shares are different from the
rights attaching to the B Shares For a summary of the rights attaching to each class of shares refer o Note 23 The
far values of interest rate dernvative instruments have been determined by reference to market values provided by

the relevant counter parties

Carrying value of categones of financial instruments

2007 2006
fm £m
Financial assets
FVTPL held for trading 02 03
Dervative iInstruments N designated hedge accounting relatonships 01 112
Loans and recelvables 1,157 3 10612
Available for sate 02 02
1,157 8 10629
Assets not classified as financial assets 6,836 4 6,600 1
Total assets 7,994 2 76720
Financial habilities
FVTPL held for trading (710) (1550}
Derivative instruments in designated hedge accounting relationships (23 3) -
Amortised cost (4,988 3) (4,597 6}
(5,082 6) (4,752 6}
Liabilities not classified as financial iabiliies (563 9) (539 3}
Total habilities (5,646 5) (52919}
Net assets 2,3477 2,3801

2007 Report & Financial Statements 55




Songhbird Estates plc

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2007 connued

Financial risks
Interest rate risk

The group finances 1ts operations through a mixture of surpius cash, bank borrowings and debentures The group
borrows principally in sterling at both fixed and floating rates of interest and then uses interest rate swaps, caps or
collars to generate the desired interest profile and to manage the group'’s exposure 10 interest rate fluctuaiions The
group’s policy 18 1O keep the majorty of iis borrowings at fixed rates and at 31 December 2007 all of the group’s
borrowings (31 December 2006 — 99 4%) were fixed after taking account of interest rate hedging and cash deposiis
held as cash collateral {see Note 16}

Liquidity risk

The group’s policy I1s to ensure continuity of funding and at 31 December 2007 the average matunty of Canary Wharf
Group's debt was 16 2 years (31 December 2006 - 14 7 years) Shorler term flexibility 15 achieved by holtding cash
on deposit and through construction facilities with a term of typically 3 to 6 years arranged to fund the development
of new properties At 31 December 2007 the amount available to draw down under the group's construction facility
was £118 4m In addition, SFL had undrawn facilities totaling £49 8m that may he borrowed by SFL to fund the
payment of interest and certain other working capital purposes SFLUs facility 15 repayable in full in May 2010

The securitisation, secured and construction loans are each subject to lending covenants that include maximum loan
10 value ratios and minimum interest coverage ratios The group was In compliance with all lending covenants at
31 December 2007 and throughout the year then ended

Exchange rate risk

Although the group's policy 18 to maximise all financing in sterling, 1t had some borrowings n US dollars at
31 December 2006 Such borrowings were fully hedged with all principal and interest liabiiies swappead into sterling
at hixed rates These borrowings were repaid In 2007 The group has no current intenticn to borrow further amounts
in currencies other than sterling

Capital risk

The group manages its capital to eénsure that entites in the group will be able to continue as going concerns The
capital structure of the group consists of debt, cash and cash equivalent and monetary assets as disclosed
elsewhera in this Note and equity including reserves as disclosed in Notes 23 and 24

Credit risk
Crednt rnsk associated with trade receivables i1s disclosed in Note 13

Swap counter parties for the group’s dervative financial instruments are all rated ‘A’ or better on the S&P rating
system Cash deposits are placed on the maney market for varying perieds of time with banks that are all ‘A’ rated
or above, or remamn on deposit with major UK clearing banks

Canary Whari Group has a £155 Om conssruction Ioan facilily secured against 5 Churchill Place prowided jointly by
Barclays and Bear Stearns and at 31 December 2007 £118 4m remained available 1o draw down The Drapers
Gardens joint venture in which Canary Wharf Group has a 20 0% interest, has a £172 5m facility with Lehman
Brothers, of which £102 Om remained to be drawn down at 31 December 2007

The carrying amount of fnancial assets recorded i the financial statements represents the group's maximum
exposure 10 credit risk

Externally imposed capital requirements
The group 1s not subject to externally imposed capital requirements
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22 PROVISIONS
Provisions have been made in respect of the following labilites

Vacant Qther

leasehold lease
propertes  commitments Total
£m £m £m
1 January 2006 219 345 564
Utilisation of provision (68) (66) {13 4)
Unwind of discount 07 09 16
Change n provision 21) (19) (4 0)
31 December 2006 137 269 406
Utilisation of provision (12 4} (39 (163)
Unwind of discount 07 18 25
Change n provigion 15 (11 04
31 December 2007 35 237 272

Vacant leasehold properties

At 31 December 2007 the provision for the estimated net hability in respect of vacant leasehold properties
discounted at 8 4% being the group s weighted average cost of debt at that date, was £3 5m (31 December 2006 -
£13 7m discounted at 6 2%)

In 2007 the group paid £6 2m to the superior landlord of one of ts vacant leasehold properties in consideration for
a surrender of the obligations in respect of such property A break notice has been served on the landlord of one
remaining property and as a result Canary Wharf Group's obligation in respect of this property will expire in July 2009
After taking into account costs incurred during the year of £12 4m, the brought forward provision of £13 7m and the
effect of discounting of E0 7m, the charge to income for the year was £1 5m

At 31 December 2007 £11 0m (31 December 2006 — £17 5m) was held in cash collateral to fund costs incurred on
the remaining property The surplus of cash collateral over that required 1o fund future costs will be released to
Canary Wharf Group over the peniod to expiry of the lease

The rents payable on the vacant leasehold properties are classified as operating lease payments and are disclosed
n Note 3 The future mimimum operating lease payments under nen-cancellable cperating leases are disclosed in
Note 9

In arnving at the proviston on the remaining vacant leasehold property assumptons have been made regarding the
future occupancy costs of this property prior 1o the expiry of the leasehold commitment These estimates have been
made based on managements expenence with other similar properties

Other lease commitments

In connection with an agreement for lease signed in 2001 Canary Wharf Group entered into a rent support
commitment under which it may contribute a maximum of £10 per sa ft per annum towards the difference between
the passing rent payable by a tenant at its previous premises and the rent achievable on any sub-lease The
maximum amount payable in regpect of this commitment at 31 December 2007 had reduced to £23 7m (nominal)
from £26 6m at 31 December 2006 and had a present value of £19 1m calculated on the basis of a discount rate of
6 4% (31 December 2006 — £20 7m discounted at 6 2%) The commitments under this agreement expire between
2013 and 2017 This amount has been provided for in full and wifl be subject to review at each subsequent balance
sheet date
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In connection with the sale of certain propenties durng 2005 Canary Wharf Group agreed to provide rental support
either In respect of unexpired rent free periods or untl the next rent review date A provision in respect of these
commitments was recognised at the date of disposal The remaining provision at 31 December 2007 was £4 6m
calculated on the basis of a discount rate of 6 4% (31 December 2006 — £6 2m, discounted at & 2%) The obligation
under one of thase commitments expires in 2008 The remaining commitment relates to the lease back of certain car

parking spaces and expiras in 2028

SHARE CAPITAL
Issued share capital comprises
2007 2006
£m £m
Equity shares
— A Shares 261 261
- B Shares 193 178
—C Shares - -
454 439
Shares not classified as eguity
- D Share - -
- 3G Shares 177 177
631 616

As at 31 December 2006 a total of 616,117 548 shares were in 1ssue |In February 2007 14,478,260 B Shares were
1ssued to BL in consideration for the redemption of the D Share by the company This issue of B Shares resulted i
an increase of £1 5m in their carrying value, funded by a capitalisaton of £1 5m from the company s share premium
account There were no changes in authorised share capital in 2007

At 31 December 2007 Authonsed Issued

Equity Shares

— A Shares 886,642,391 260 849,750

- B Shares 718,407,318 192,391,649

- C Shares 150,000,000 -
1,755,049,709 453,841,399

Shares not classified as equity

— D Share 1 -

— 5G Shares 244,950,290 176,754,408
2000,000,000 630,585,807

The nghts attaching to each class of shares can be summarised as follows

A Shares

*

Eight votes per share

Fixed cumulative dividend entitlement at a rate of 8 0% per annum to be paid quarterly in arrears and accruing
from day to day, commencing on the date of 1ssue The A Shares rank equally with the B Shares in respect of

dividend nights

At least two thirds of the aggregate voting nighis of the A shareholders, including the consent of the Morgan

Stanley shareholder group are required 1o vary the nghts attaching to the A Shares
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In the event of a iiguidation event which includes any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the company, after
payment of the Liguidation Preference Amount (see below) the surplus assets shall be disinbuted to A
shareholders ranking equally with the B shareholders, in an amount on each share equal to the sum of (1} the
aggregate amount {(including premiumy} from tme to time paid up on that share less the aggregate of any
additional amounts authonsed by the board for distnbzution in respect of that share (2) all accrued and unpaid
fixed cumulative 8 0% dividends and (3} such addiional amount (if any) as 1s necessary in order that the A
sharehalders (ranking egually with the B shareholders) receive at least an 8 0% annual internal rate of return In
respect of each of ther shares {the ‘Liguidation Ordinary Amount )

In the event of avallability of further surplus assets following the above payment, & further distnbution could be
made to A shareholders, ranking equally with the B and SG shareholders, up to a maxmum amount of £100,000
per £1 paid per share

B Shares

One vote per share

Fixed cumulative dividend entitlement at a rate of 8 0% per annum to be paid quarterty in arrears and accruing
from day 10 day, commencing on the date of 1ssue The B Shares rank equally with the A Shares 1n respect of
dividend rights

At least two thirds of the aggregate voting nghts of the B shareholders are required 1o vary the nghis atiaching
1o the B Shares

In the event of a iquidation event, which includes any hiquidation, dissolution or winding up of the company, after
payment of the Liguidation Preference Amount (see below) the surplus assets shall be distnibuted to B
shareholders, ranking eaually with the A shareholders in an amount on each share equal 1o the sum of (1} the
aggregate amount (Including premium) from tme to tme pad up on that share less the aggregate of any
additional amounts authonsed by the board for distribution 1 respect of that share (2) all accrued and unpaid
fixed cumulative B 0% dividends and (3) such addiional amount (if any} as 18 necessary in order that the B
shareholders {ranking equally with the A shareholders) recerve at least an 8 0% annual internal rate of return I
respect of each of their shares {the ‘Liguidation Ordinary Amount )

In the event of avallability of further surplus assets following the above payment a further disinbution could be
made 1o B shareholdersg, ranking equally with the A and SG shareholders, up 10 a maximum amount of £100,000
per £1 paid per share

D Share

The D Share was redeemed on 26 February 2007, and there 1S no current intention for it to be reissued Until
24 January 2007, when the Articles were amended the D Share also carned the following nghts

L]

No voling rights
The nghts attaching to the D Share can only be varied with the consent in writing of the holder of the D Share

Entitlement to a D dvidend for each year in the five year period commencing on 1 July 2004 based on 20 0%
of the incremental increase in the market value of retal assets as identified in the AIM admigsion document of
the company

In the event of any hquidation, dissolution or winding up of the company a preferential distributton out of the
surplus assets of the company of an amount up to the aggregate of all D dividends declared but not paid (‘D
Share Liguidation Amount')

The dwvidend nghis, both the accrued dividend entittiement at the date of redemption and all future dividend
entitlements, aitaching o the D Share were cancelled in consideration for the 1ssue of the 14,478,260 B Shares
mentioned previously
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SG Shares

Eight vates per share

Enttlement to a fixed cumulative preferential dividend in priority to the payment of any other dvidend andjor
distribution at a rate of 8 0% per annum payable quarterty in arrears The dividend on the SG Shares increases
automatically by 0 5% (subsect to a maximum of 10 0%) on each quarterly dividend payment date on which the
accrued fixed cumulative preferentiai drvidend 1s not paid

Conversion nght into A Shares on a cne-for-one basis at any tme

Conversion night into B Shares on a one-for-cne hasis up to a maximum aggregate paid up value of £150 Om,
subject to certain restrictons

Redemption night in whole or in part within the 90 day penod commencing on 21 May 201G, or earler if the A
Shares are listed or are the subject of a similar exit transaction

The nghts attaching 1o the SG Shares can only be vaned with the unanimous consent of the SG shareholders
In addition, unanimous consent of the SG shareholders 1s also reguired for the following
(1) the company 1ssuing any share capital that ranks senior to or an par with the SG Shares,

(1} altenng the dividend nights of the SG Shares or any other shares 1in a manner that 15 adverse to the holders
of the SG Shares,

() altering the memorandum and/or articles of association of the company or, provided that consent 15 not
unreasonably withheld, the constitutional documents of any subsidiary of the company,

(v} the company redeeming or repurchasing any share capital that ranks on par with or junior 1o the SG Shares
(f not In accordance with the terms of 1Issue of any such class of share capital)

(v) the company or any of its subsidiaries enterning into any transaction not contemplated by the budget and
operating plan approved by the board and that results in adverse tax consequences to the SG
shareholders,

(vi) making or permiting any material alteration to the fundamental nature of the business of the company and
its subsidianes

(wn) the sale of all or substanhally all of the assets of the company except as contemplated by the approved
hudget and operating plan

(vim)any sale of assets of the company or any of its subsidiaries for consideration other than cash, and

(1x) the issue, except to the company or a wholly owned subsidiary of any share capital of any subsichary of the
company, provided that the SG shareholders’ consent 1s given to any such transaction (o a third party made
in good faith and on an arm’s length basis

In the event of a lquidation event, which includes any liquidation, dissclution or winding up of the company, the
surplus assets shali be distributed 10 SG shargholders in an amount on each SG Share equal 1o the sum of (1)
the aggregate amount (including premium; from time to time pasd up on that share less the aggregate of any
additignal amounts authonised by the beard for distnbution in respect of that share {2} all accrued and unpard
fixed cumulative preferential 8 0% dividends and (3) such addstional amount (if any) as 1s necessary in order that
the SG shareholders recetve at least an 8 D% annual rate of return n respect of each of therr shares (the
Liguidation Preference Amount’)
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* Inthe eveni of avalability of further surplus assets following payment of the Liguidation Preference Amount and
the Liguidation Ordinary Amount a further distribution would be made 1o SG shareholders, ranking egually with
the A and B shareholders, up to a maximum amount of £100,000 per £1 paid per share

Under the terms of the Shareholders’ Agreement between the holders of the A Shares and SG Shares, the Morgan
Stanley shareholder group has the right at any time after 21 November 2008, to propose terms of a sale of the
company (without necessarly having identified a potent:al purchaser) In those cwcumstances the other A
shareholders and the SG sharehoelders have the nght either 1o support and participate in the sale or to purchase the
shares of the Morgan Stanley shareholder group (and those of any other supporting shareholders) on the same terms
as, or betier terms than ihose proposed by the Morgan Sianley shareholders These nghis are subject to the
provisions of the Takeover Code

In addition, the parties to the Shareholders Agreement agreed to take, from 31 Degember 2012, such action as 1S
necessary to wind up and dissolve the company That provision may be walved by agreement of the shareholders
who are parties to the Shareholders’ Agreement
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OTHER RESERVES
Revalu- Total
Share  Treasury awon  Hedging other  Minonty  Retaned
premium Shares' reserve’  reserve' reserves nerest  earnings' Total

Note £m £m £m £m £m £m £m Em
1 January 2006 3755 (10) A7 {(545) 3617 9141 4069 16827
Protit for the year after taxation - - - - - - 7050 7050
Valuation movements on
development properties 1 - - 1729 - 1729 - - 1729
Gans on effective hedges 20 - - - 225 225 - - 225
Tax on tems taken direct
to equity 8 - - (518) B87) (585) - - (58 5)
Net income recognised
directly in equity - - 1211 158 1369 - 7050 8419
Transferred 10 minonty interest - - (47 5) (83) (558) 3577 (3019) -
Transferred 10 Income
- cash flow hedges - - - 74 74 - - 74
Tax on transfers 8 - - - (2 2) 22) - - (22)
Total recognised Income
and expense for the period - - 736 127 863 3577 4031 8471
Transfer on SG Shares 52 - ~ - 52 - (11) 41
Reserve movements in
raspect of share plan - 04 - - 04 - - 04
Dividends paid - - - - - (1201) (780) (1981)
31 December 2006 3807 (06) 1153 (418) 4536 11517 7309 23362
Profit {or the year after taxation - - - - - - 2058 2058
Valuation movements on
development properiies 11 - - 228 - 228 - - 228
Valuation movement on
associated undertakings - - 03 - 03 - - 03
LLosses on effective hedges 20 - - - {197y (197) - - {197
Tax on 1iems taken direct to equity 8 - - (11) 01 {10) - - (10
Net income recognised
directly in equity - - 220 (19 6} 24 - 2058 2082
Transferred to minonty interest - - (86) (72y (158) 1212 (1054} -
Transferred 10 Income
— cash flow hedges - - - 358 358 - - 358
Tax on transfers 8 - - - {100y (100) - - {100)
Total recogrised income and
expense for the period - - 134 10y 124 1212 1004 2340
Transfer on D Share (15) - - - (15) - 531 516
Reserve movements In respect
of share plan - 02 — - Q2 - - 02
Dividends paid - - - - - - (3197) (3197)
31 December 2007 3792 (04) 1287 (428) 4647 12729 5647 23023

Note

1 The Treasury Snares reserve represents the cost of B Shares held in trust 1in connection with the Canary Wharf Group share option plan

(Note 25}

2 The revaluahion reserve relates to revaluaton surpluses on development properties and 1s not distnbutable

3 The hedging reserve comprses the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of the group s hedging instruments together

with the unamortised portion of certain fair value adjustments that arose on the acquisiion of Canary Whari Group in 2004
4 Inciudes revalualion surpluses In respect of nvestrnent properties that are recognised as icome under IFRS
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Dividends
The amount recognised as dividends paid CoOmprises
2007 2006
£m £m
Payment on A Shares 1839 47 0
Payment on B Shares 1358 3t0
3197 780

An intenm dividend of 29 5p per share totalling £186 Om was paid on 14 February 2007 and a further ntenm
dvidend of 41 Op per share totaling £258 4m was paid on 18 June 2007 Of the total dividend of £444 4m, £124 7m
was paid io the SG shareholders and classified as a repayment of debt or financing expenses for the purposes of
these financial statements

No appropriation of profit 1s required to be recognised In respect of the other classes of shares Net of dwvidends
paid, the appropriation of profit accruing for 2007, but not recognised in these financial statements, was £2 Om on
the A Shares (2006 - £12 1m) and £1 5m on the B Shares (2006 ~ £9 Om)

SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

During 2007 Canary Wharf Group operated the Deferred Plan in conjunction with the Trust The rules of the Deferred
Plan allow the maponty of participants who were granted options to elect to take a cash eguwalent valug in
subpstitution for exercising ther options

Dunng 2007 options over 148,750 B Shares were exercised under the Deferred Plan (2006 — 1,237,950), and
participants with options over a further 46,000 B Shares elected to take a cash sum in substitution for exercising their
options (2006 — 121,750) At 31 December 2007, options over 744,220 B Shares were outstanding (31 December
2006 - 938 970)

At 31 December 2007, the trustee of the Trust held 966,223 B Shares

The Deferred Plan 15 a discretionary plan, which does not benefit from approved status for iIncome tax purposes
Under the terms of the Deferred Plan, options over B Shares are granted 1o participants at the discretion of the
Remuneration Commuttee No consideration i1s payable for the grant of an option under the Deferred Plan, and an
exercise pnce of £1 is payable upon exercise in full or in part of the option Unless the Remuneration Committee
determines otherwise, an option may normally be exercised on or after the first anniversary of the grant date in
respect of 50 0% of the B Shares to which it relates The balance of the option may normally be exercised on or after
the second anniversary of the grant date Optons normaliy lapse on the third anniversary of the date of grant Upon
exercise or parl exercise of an option the participant also recerves a distribution equating to any net dividend
received on the shares since the date of grant The trustee of the Trust waives its entitlement to dividend (save for
0 01p per share} on any shares In excess of those required to satisfy outstanding options The terms of the Deferred
Plan allow participants who were granted options on or after December 2005 to elect to take a cash equivalent value
In substitution for exercising therr options
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Aggregate Distrnibution ¢

net value ? made by
. of shares Trustee
Surrendered at date of out of
Date of 1 January for cash 31 Decermnber  exercise or dividend
grant Exercise penod 2007 Exercised alternaiive 2007 surrender ncome
B Shares B Shares B Shares B Shares £ £
230904 2105060220908 439,970 - - 439,970 - -
030505 21050610 220908 &0 000 - - 60,000 - -
201205 2012060121208 138,000 (57 500) (23 ooOy* 57,500 216 409 50,313
201205 201207 t0 181208 289 500 (85,500) » (23,000} 181,000 184 464 968 023
051206 201207t0 191208 5750 (5,750) - - 9,660 4054
051206 010508t0 191208 5750 — - 5,750 - -
938 970 (148 780) (46 000) 744,220 410533 150 380
Note
(1)  Market value of shares less cost of exercise
(2} Dwidends receved on shares under option are distnbuted to participants as and when the options are evercised or a cash equivalent valug 1s
taken in subrshiution for exgrcsing the ophion
{3) Exercised over vanous dates throughoul the year at an average B Share price of £2 373
{4)  Surrendered for cash alternative on 9 January 2007 at a B Share price of £3 477
(5) Exercised on 20 December 2007 at an average B Share price of £1 700
(6) Surrendered for cash equivalent on 20 andt 21 December 2007 at an average price of £1 735 per B Share

The Trust holds B Shares which may be used to satisfy options granted under the Deferred Plan or any other share
plan the company may adopt The assets of the Trust are held separately from these of the company and the trustee
of the Trust 1s Halifax EES Trustees International Limited

Where a parhicipant has the night to take a cash alternative sum in substitution for exercising an option the company
has agreed to loan the necessary sum 10 the trustee, and the trustee has agreed to sell such B Shares as may be
necessary to repay the loan unless determined otherwise by the board

At 31 December 2007 the group had accrued £0 4m in respect of its hability under the Deferred Plan (3t December
2006 - 1 0m) Alf of this amount (31 December 2006 - £0 5m) related to B Shares over which options had vested
but had not been exercised at the balance sheet date The income statement reflected a net credit of £8 1min 2007
reflecting the reduction in share price In the year (2006 - charge of £0 5m)
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26 NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Reconciliation of profit on ordinary activities before tax to cash generated from operaions

2007 2006
£m £m

Profit on ordmary activities before tax 1820 884 1
Non cash movements
Net valuation gamns on investment properties and investmenis {110 4) (722 1)
Share of loss after tax of associates 14 (0 3)
Spreading of tenant incentives, committed rent increases and letting fees (257) (24 4)
Write back of acquisition fees - (22)
Depreciation 04 02
Share options (1) 05
Profit recogrised on construction contracts {89 1) -

(223 5) (748 3)

(415) 1358

Changes to working capital and other cash movements
Net financing costs 2736 207 1
Refinancing charges (Note 7) 143 (123 3}
Utilisation of provisions and unwind of discount (132) (17 2)
Increase in receivables (127) (20)
Increase N payables 347 212
Praceeds from construction contracts 3161 1318
Construction contract expenditure (117 2) {27 1)
Cash generated from operations 4541 3263

27 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2007 certain members of the group had given fixed and floatng charges over substantially all of
thetr assets as secunty for certan of the group’s borrowings as referred 10 1n Note 21 In particular, vanous members
of the group had at 31 Daecember 2007 given fixed first ranking charges over cash deposis totalling £144 Om

As securdy for the 1issue of up 10 £2,588 7m of secuntised debt (Note 21) Canary Whari Group has granted a first
fixed charge over the shares of CWF Il and a first floating charge has been given over all of the assets of CWF i

Commitments of Canary Wharf Group for future expenditure

2007 2006
£m £m
Under contract 3250 3870

The commitments for future expenditure relate to the completion of development projects where construction was
committed at 31 December 2007 Any costs accrued ar provided for in the balance sheet at 31 December 2007
have been excluded

In October 2007 Canary Wharf Group signed heads of terms in relation 10 the Crossrail development with the
Secretary of State for Transport The government subsequently announced ts commitment to the Crossrai! project,
subject to parlamentary approval and Royal Assent Under the agreement, Canary Wharf Group will design buiid
and finance construction of a station at Canary Wharf and upon completion lease the station to TFL 1t 1s anticipated
that construction will be funded by way of a construciion facility, in conjunction with an equity contribution from
Canary Wharf Group Subject to planning, Canary Wharf Group will be granted the nght io develop a retall complex
above the staton Royal Assent 1s expected in July 2008
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Canary Wharf Group entered into an option deed with BWB in November 2007 which allows for the group to elect
for the draw down of a 999 year lease of addiional fand south of Heron Quays West The option deed 1s for a period
of 5 years from November 2007 An initial option payment of £2 25m was made and 1s followed by annual paymenis
of £250 000 on each anniversary of the option deed If the group exercises the option BWB has the night to receive
a fixed stream of rental payments throughout the duration of the lease or to commute the rental payments into a
capital sum payable on the fifth anniversary of the opuon deed

Canary Wharf Group has, in the normal course of its business, granted imited warranties or Indemnities to s tenants
In respect of bullding defects (and defects on the Estate or in the car parks} caused through breach of its obligations
as developer contained in any pre-let or other agreement Offsetting this potential labiity Canary Wharf Group
benefits from warranties from the trade contractors and suppliers who worked on such bulldings

In relation 1o the Drapers Gardens joint venture in which certain Canary Wharf Group companies own a 20 0%
shareholding, CWHL has entered into a cost overrun guarantee 1n favour of the construction loan lending bank
CWHL guarantees to the bank the cost of any outstanding cost overruns, equal 10 1ts properiional sharsholding
subject to an overall cap of £2 3m In addion, CWHL has entered nto an interest guaraniee in favour of the bank
pursuant to which it guarantees 20 0% of the interest due on the construction loan This guarantee 1s Imited 10 a
maximum penod of 12 months' interest following the date of practical compietion of the butding The directors are
of the wiew that this guarantee has no matenal value

Sub-let commitments

Under the terms of certain agreements for lease Canary Wharf Group has committed 10 take back certain space on
the basis of short term sub-leases at the end of which the space reverts 10 the relevant tenants This space has been
secuntised bui, nsofar as the secuntisations are concerned, the tenants are contracted to pay rent on the entire
amount of space leased, whitst taking the covenant of Canary Wharf Group s subsidiaries on the sub-let space The
existence of the sub-let commitments has been taken into account in arrving at the market valuation of the group’s
properties at 31 December 2007
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The table below summarnses these sub-lets including the rent payable for the next financial year, net of any rent
recevable

Onginal MNet Rent Rent Term

sub let Re-let" remt™ review review commente- Expiry or
Property Leaseholder sq ft sq f £ date basis ment first break
10 Upper Bank Street  Cliford Chance 52 600 52600 077 N/A N/A Jul 2003 Jul 2008
10 Upper Bank Street  Clitford Chanca 52 100 52 100 092 WI2008 Fixed at £49/s Jul 2003 Jul 2013
25-30 Bank Street Lebhman Brothers 25 200 25,200 044 M7A NIA Jul 2003 Jul 2008
25-30 Bank Street Lehman Brothers 50,400 50 400 032 NA MN/A Jui 2003 Jul 2008
25-30 Bank Street Lehman Brothers 24,100 24100 024 Nov2008 Fixed ai E53/st Jui 2003 Mar 2009
25-30 Bank Street Lehman Brothers 100,200 90100 332 Jul2008 Fixed at £53/s1*  Jul 2003 Jul 2013
One Churchill Place Barclays 133 400 133 400 098 Jul2009  OMRup only Jul 2004 Jul 2019
One Churehill Place Barclays 129700 126,700 089 Jul 2009 OMR uponly Jul 2004 Jul 2014
One Churchill Place Barclays B5 000 65000 121 NIA N/A Jul 2004 Jul 2009
40 Barik Strest Skadden 19 500 19 500 605 N/A N/A - Mar 2003 Mar 2008
40 Bank Street Skadden 19,500 19 500 059 Apr2008 OMRuponly Mar2003  Sep 2010
40 Bank Street Skadden 19 500 19,500 026 Apr2008 OMRuponly  Mar 2003 Mar 2033

691,900 681,100 1006

Note

{1) A call opuion was granted on 10 B0O sq it of sub let space 1n 25-30 Bank Street With the exception of this space all of the sub-fet space has
now been re-et

{2) The net annual sub-let rental cbiigations will decrease over tme with the expiration of re-letting ren! free penods

(3) Followed by annual increases to £59 65 per s¢ ftin 2012

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On 29 December 2004 the company entered nto the Provision of Services Agreement with Canary Wharf Group
Under the Provisian of Services Agreement, Canary Wharf Group agreed to provide certain business and corporate
administration services for a tme based fee to the company for an intial penocd of 12 months and to continue
thereafier until terminaied by either party on three months notice No such notice has been served to date Dunng
2007 £350,000 plus VAT was charged to the company and at 31 December 2007 £350 000 plus VAT remained
outstanding

During 2005 Canary Wharf Group entered nio a consultancy services agreement with Morgan Stanley under which
Canary Wharf Group appointed MS 10 provide consultancy services in respect of the management of the Estate and
the provision of strategic advice in relation to all areas of Canary Whart Group's business The fees chargeable under
this agreement are calculated on a time spent basis n accordance with dally rates notified to Canary Wharf Group
subject 10 a maximum brmt of £1 Om in aggregate exclusive of VAT 1n any twelve month period No amounts became
payable under this agreement during 2007 or 2006

On 4 November 2005 the company entered intc an agreement with SAL M3BI, MSMS and other non-related financial
Institutions In relation to the provision of loan facilities to an aggregate maximum funding of approximately £736 9m
Under this agreement MSBI, {ogether with Hypo Bank, were appointed Arrangers and MSMS was appointed Agent
and Secunty Trustee Under this facility an annual arrangement fee of 0 05% was due on the prncipal amount of
each Ipan outstanding under the faciliies, io be divided equally beiween MSBI and Hypo Bank All amounts due
under the faciliies were repaid In May 2007 (Note 21) In 2007, £101 021 of arrangement fees were paid under this
agreement
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A £15m abort fee was paid by Canary Wharf Group to Morgan Stanley in 2067 in respect of work carned out for an
initial financing restructuring proposal put forward in the third quarter of 2006

During 2007 Canary Wharf Group purchased IT and telecommunicatons services to the value of £126 814 from
HSC, a company n which Canary Wharf Group holds an eguity investment equivalent to approximately 13 0% of the
issued share capital £123,971 plus VAT was owed to HSO at 31 December 2007 In addition during 2007, Canary
Wharf Group billed HS0 £40,589 for access 10 the Estate s telecommunications infrastructure £108,035 pius VAT
was owed by HSO at 31 December 2007

During 2007 Canary Wharf Group billed £507,099 plus VAT in respect of the provision of management services to
WWLP of which £19 426 remained outstanding at 31 December 2007

In March 2007 Canary Wharf Group entered in an agreement with Morgan Stanley under which Canary Wharf Group
appointed Morgan Stanley as Arranger and Beokrunner and Joint Lead Manager in respect of the restructuring of
the Canary Wharf Group securnitisation involving the redempiion of £572 6m of FRNs and the issue of £726 Om of
new non-amortising FRNs A total of £2 Om was paid under this agreement dunng the year

In May 2007 the company entered Into an Agent and Security Trustee Fee Letter with MSMS In respect of the
£880 Om Facility Agreement dated 18 May 2007 (Note 21) Under this faciity an annual combined agency and
security trustee fee of 0 035% 1s due on the amount drawn under the Facility from day {0 day A tota! of £141,699
was pald in the year out of £174 339 incurred

In June 2007 Canary Wharf Group entered inte joint venture arrangements with MSREF V and Exemplar on behalf
of Omega, for the redevelopment of Drapers Gardens Under the terms of the Jaint Venture arrangements a £0 84m
agency fee and £3 50m financing fee were paid to Morgan Stanley by the joint venture Durning 2007 the group billed
£332,500 for construction management services to Drapers Gardens Unit Trust, in which 1t holds a 26 0% interest
At 31 December 2007 £110 000 plus VAT was outstanding

FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IFRS

The group's transition date for the adoption of IFRS was 1 January 2006 This transition date was selected In
accordance with IFRS 1

The principal differences for the group between reporting under IFRS as compared to UK GAAP and which are noted
In the tables on the following pages are,

(1) The cost of tenant incentives, such as rent free penods 1s now amortised over the term of the leases concermed
rather than over the period to the first review to market rents

(1} lease negotiation costs are now amortised over the term of the leases concerned rather than being expensed
as incurred

{n) The surpluses and deficits ansing on the periodic revaiuation of the investment property portfolio are now taken
through the income statement

(v) Goodwill ansing on acquisition 18 no longer amortised but kept on the balance sheet and reviewed regularly for
mparrment In ight of the revaluation of developmeni properties and properties under construction to farr vaive,
which includes amounts previously shown separately as goodwill under UK GAAP the company has written
down the goodwill ansing on the acquisition of Canary Whart Group under UK GAAP to £nil upon converston to
IFRS

(v} The company has taken the option to revalue development properties where the intention 1s to hold the
completed properties for iInvestment purposes The surplus on revaluation is taken to equity
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(vi) The fair value of all dernivatives such as interest rate swaps 1 now recogrised in the group balance sheet In the
case of the US dollar denominated A5 notes, the mark o market on the related interest hedges s offset by 1he
translation gain on the notes

(vu} Prior 10 the share capital amendments approved In January 2007 the D Share camed the rnight 1o a dwvidend
based on 20 0% of the increase in value of the group s retail assets The nature of this dividend entitlerment was
such that it was treated as a dernvatie for IFRS purposes and restated at farr value at each balance sheet date

(vin)Deferred tax 1s required to be provided in full on afl differences between the carrying value for accounts
purposes and those for taxation In particutar deferred tax 1s now provided on revaluation surpluses and deferred
fax assets recognised In respect of unclaimed EZAs and {ax losses

(1x} The minority interest 1§ adjusted for its share of the IFRS adjustments

(x) Deposits with original maturity in excess of three months are classified as monetary assets rather than cash or
cash equivalents

The application of IFRS has also changed the presentation of the cash flow statement which now shows cash flows
denved from three types of activites — operaiing nvesting and financing In addition under IFRS, the cash flow
statement includes all cash fiows in respect of cash and cash equivalents

The overall cash flows of the group do not change as a result of using IFRS The underlying performance of the
business 1s unchanged

As a general rule the group was required to estabhsh sts IFRS accounting policies for 2007 and apply these
retrospectively to determine its opening IFRS balance sheet at the transiton date of 1 January 2006 and the
comparative information for 2006 However, advantage was taken of the exemption afforded by IFRS 1 1n relation 1o
business combinations such that the acquisiion of Canary Wharf Group in May 2004 has not been restated 1o
comply with IFRS 3 'Business combinations’

In prepanng the IFRS accounts, the group has adjusted amounts reported previously n the financial siatements
prepared in accordance with UK GAAP Quantification of how the transition has affected the group’s fmancial
performance and position 1$ set out in the following tables 1n respect of each of

« Transitional consolidated balance sheet as at 1 January 2006

* Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2006

* (Consolidated income statement {or the year ended 31 December 2006
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30 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

On 7 February 2008 Canary Whari Group announced lettings on over 225 000 sq ft {of which approximately 200,000
sq ft was concluded post 31 December 2007) In One Canada Square, :nctuding an agreement tor lease with Moody s
for approximately 170 000 sq ft on a 15 year lease in space formerly occupied by the Telegraph Media Group

On 26 March 2008 Canary Whart Group declared a dividend of 16p per ordinary share payable on @ Apnl 2008 The
company has no current intention of paying a dividena to shareholders
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Company Balance Sheet
at 31 December 2007

2007 2006
Note £m £m
FIXED ASSETS
Investments (c) 1,3835 647 3
CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors due 1n less than one year (d) - 296
Cash at bank and in hand (e) 09 128 8
09 158 4

CREDITORS Amounts falling due within one year (1) (399 8) (58 3)
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIESYASSETS (398 9) 100 1
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 984 6 747 4
CREDITORS Amounts falling due after more than one year (g} (30 6) (142 6)
NET ASSETS 954 0 604 8
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital (n 45 4 430
Reserves
— share premium (1} 3792 3807
- prefit and loss account {1) 164 3 1802
— other reserve {n 365 1 -
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS i 9540 604 8

Notes {(a) to (3) on the following pages form an integral part of these financial statements

Approved by the board on 26 March 2008 and signed on its behalf by

M}MM
DAVID PRITCHARD
Chairman
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2007

(a

(b)

(c)

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies are set out helow They have all been applied consistently throughout the current
and previous years

Basis of preparation

The companys financial statements are prepared in accordance with applicable UK accounting standards and
under the historical cost convention

Investment in subsidiary undertakings

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are stated in the company’s balance sheet at cost less any provisian for
impairment

Interest recervable and interest payable
Interest recevable and payable are recognised in the penod in which they fall due

Accounting for share capital classified as non-equity

In accordance with FRS 25, both the D Share prior to its cancellation and the SG Shares are classified as habilities
and are included in crediors payable n more than one year

Until conversion of the D Share, dividends potentially payable 1o the D shareholder were recognised as they fall due
classified as interest payable and included in creditors falling due within one year

The finance cost of the SG Shares 1s also classified as interest payable and included in creditors due within cne year
The excess of amounts paid over interest accrued in accordance with the shareholders’ nghts (Note 23 of the Notes
to the consolidated financial statements) serves o reduce the carrying value of the lability inciuded in creditors
payable in more than one year

PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

The profit recorded by the company In 2007 was £668 9m (2006 — £226 5m) of which £486 Bm was aitnbutable to
subsidiary dividends recervable in the year (2006 - £260 Om) As permitted by Section 230(3) of the Companies Act
1985, no profit and loss account 1s presented for the company in respect of either year

INVESTMENTS
Investments comprise shares held directly and indirectly in the following subsidiaries

Name Description of shares % Principal activities
Songbird Finance Limited” £1 Ordinary 1000 Investment company
Songhird Acquisition Limited” 10p Ordinary 1000 Investment company
Canary Whar{ Group pic 1p Ordinary 608 Holding company

*Direcily held
All of these companies are registered in the UK

A complete list of Canary Wharf Group's subsidiary undertakings will be attached to that company's annual return
when it 1s submitted to the Registrar of Companies

At 31 December 2006 the company held the entire 1ssued share capital of SAL comprising 396,518,130 ordinary
shares of 10p each The principal activity of SAL was {0 act as a finance company and manage s mvestment In
Canary Wharf Group In addition the company held 85,004,663 ordinary shares in Canary Wharf Group representing
13 3% of the ordinary shares in 1ssue at 31 December 2006 On 21 May 2007 the company sold s shares Iin

2007 Report & Financial Statements 77




Songbird Estales plc

Notes to the Company Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2007 contnued

(d)

(e)

)

Canary Wharf Group to SFL for £4 58 per share being the adjusted NNNAV per share of Canary Wharf Group at
31 December 2006, resulting in a profit on disposal of £138 6m As part of this reorganisaiion, the company acquired
986,831,887 ordinary £1 shares in SFL representing all of the 1ssued share capital of that company The directors are
of the view that the value of the companys investments at 31 December 2007 15 not less than the amount at which
they are stated in the company's balance sheet at that date

Cost and net book value

£m
31 December 2006 647 3
Addimions 986 8
Disposals (250 6}
31 December 2007 1,3835
DEBTORS
2007 2006
£m £m

Due within one year

Amounts owed by subsidhary undertakings - 286

- 286

FINANCIAL ASSETS

The company's financial assets comprise short term cash deposits Cash deposits totalled £0 9m at 31 December
2007 (31 December 2006 - £128 8m), comprising depoesits placed on deposit at call and term rates

CREDITORS AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONEYEAR

2007 2006

£m £m

Amounts owed to subsidiary underiakings 3976 -
Accruals 07 08
Financing costs of non-equity share capital 15 575
3998 583

The company had no purchases outstanding at either 31 December 2007 or 31 December 2006

Financing costs of non-equity share capiial at 31 December 2007 comprised £1 5m (31 December 2006 — £8 7m)
of dividends accrued (but not declared or paid) in respect of the SG Shares At 31 Decembrer 2006 financing costs
of non-eqguity share capital also included £48 8m accrued i respect of the D Share Following the redemption of the
D Share referred to In Note 23 of the Notes to the consohdated financial statements, this accrual was released and
the resultant credit has been transferred directly to the profit and loss reserve

The amount owed to subsidiary undertakings 1s on an interest free basis with no defined redemption date This
amount arose from the restructuring referred 10 in Note (¢)
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CREDITORS AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR
Creditors due after more than one year comprise
2007 2008
£m £m
Non-equity share capital 306 1426
306 1426

In accordance with FRS 25 the D Share prior to its cancelfation and the 3G Shares have been ¢lassified as creditors
falling due in more than one year, and the dividends accrued (but not declared or paid) in respect of these shares
have been included In crediiors due in less than one year (Note (i)}

SHARE CAPITAL

At 31 December 2007 a iotal ot 630,595,807 shares were 1n 1ssue Detalls of changes in share capital in 2007 can
be found in Note 23 of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements, together with the nghts attaching to each
¢class of shares

RESERVES
Share premium  Profil and loss Other
account account reserve Total
£m £m £m £m

1 January 2007 3807 180 2 - 5609
Transfer on D Share redemption (15) - - {(15)
Profit for the financial year - 668 9 - 668 9
Transfer of unreahsed profit for the financial year - {365 1) 3651 -
Ciwvidend - (319 7) - (319 7)
31 Becember 2007 3792 1643 3651 908 6

The movement or the share premium account arose from the conversion of the D Share {(Note 23 of the Notes to the
consolidated financial statements)

The other reserve arose from the reorganisation referred to in Note (¢} and 1s considered by the directors to be non
distributable

AECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN SHAREHOLDERS FUNDS

£m
1 January 2007 604 8
Profit for the financial year 668 9
Diidend paid (Note 23 of the Notes to the consolidated financial siatements) {319 7)
31 December 2007 954 0
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Independent Auditors’ Report for the Company
to the Members of Songbird Estates plc

We have audited the parent company financial statements of
Songbird Estates plc for the year ended 31 Decermber 2007
which comprise the Balance Sheet and the related Notes (a)
to(}) These parent company financral statements have been
prepared under the accounting policies set out therein

We have reported separately on the group financial
statements of Songhird Estates plc for the year ended
31 Decemnber 2007

This report is made solely to the company s members, as a
body, n accordance with section 235 of the Companies
Act 1985 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we
might state 1o the companys members those matters we
are reguired o state to them in an audiors' report and for
no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the company and the company s members as a body,
for our audit work for thig report or for the opinions we
have formed

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDITORS

The directors’ responsibilites for prepanng the Annual
Report, and the parent company financial staternents in
accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (Unted Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the Statement
of Directors’ Responsibilities

Our responsbility 18 to audit the parent company financial
statements in accordance with retevant legal and
regulatory requirements and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opinicn as to whether the parent
company financial statements give a true and {ar view and
whether the parent company financial statements have bheen
properly prepared In accordance with the Companies Act
1985 We also report to you whether in our opinion the
Directors’ Report 15 consistent with the parent company
financial statements The information given in the Directors
Report ncludes that specific nformation presented in the
Business Review that 1s cross referred from the Principal
Actvity and Business Review secton of the Directors’
Report

In addition we report to you if, in cur opinion, the company
has not kept proper accounting records If we have not
received all the information and explanations we require for
our audt or if information specified by law regarding
directors’ remuneration and other transactions 1s not
disclosed

We read the other nformation contained in the Annual
Report as descnbed n the contents section and consider
whether it 1S consistent with the audited parent company

financial statements We consider the implications for our
report If we become aware of any apparent misstatements
or matenal inconsistencies with the parent company
financial statements Our responsitrities do not extend 1©
any further Information outside the Annual Report

BASIS OF AUDIT OPINION

We conducied our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the
Audting Practices Board An audii inciudes examination,
on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the parent company financial statements |t
also includes an assessment of the significant estimates
and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of
the parent company financial statements, and of whether
the accounting policies are appropriate 10 the company’s
circumstances, consistently appled and adequately
disciosed

We planned and performed our audit 80 as to obtain ali the
infermation and expianations which we considered
necassary In order 1o provide us with sufficient evidence to
give reasonable assurance that the parent company
financial statements are free from material musstatement,
whether caused by fraud or other irregulanty or error In
forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adeguacy of the presentat:on of information 11 the parent
company financial statements

OPINION

In our opiion

* the parent company financial statements give a true
and far view, n accordance with United Kingdom

Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, of the slate
of the company s affairs as at 31 December 2007,

* the parent company financial statements have been
properly prepared In accordance with the Companies
Act 1985, and

+ the mformation given i the Directors” Repori 1s
consistent with the parent company financial
statements

Delsthe « Bt
— -
DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London
United Kingdom

26 March 2008
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Definitions

A Shares

AlM

ANZ

Articles

B Shares
Ballymore
Barclays

BL

board

BPF

BWB

Canary Whari Group
CBRE
Company
Cushman
CWFH
CWHHL
Deferred Plan
D Share
Drapers Gardens
EMRG

EMS

Estate

EU

Exemplar
EZAs

Fimalac

Fitch

FRNs

FRS 25

FVTPL
group
HMRC
HSO

Hypo Bank
IAS

1AS 11

IAS 17

IAS 39

IFRIC

IFRS

IFRS 8

Kright Frank
LBTH

LOCOG

m

Morgan Stanley
MS

MSBI
MSMS
MSREF v

Songhird Estates plc

Ordinary Class A Shares of 10p each

London Stock Exchange Alternative Investiment Markel

Australia New Zealand Bank Limited

Articles of Association of Songbird Estates plc

Ordinary Class B Shares of 10p each

Ballymore Properties Limited

Barclays Bank plc

British Land {Joint Ventures) Limited

Board of directors of the company

Bntish Property Federation

British Waterways Board

Canary Whart Group plc and its subsidianes

CB Richard Ellis Limited  Surveyors and Valuers

Songbrrd Estates plc

Cushman & Wakefield, Real Estate Consultants

Canary Whart Finance Il plc

Canary Wharf Heldings Limited

Canary Wharf Group 2004 Deierred Share Plan

D Share of 10p

Drapers Gardens scheme in the City of London

Environmental Management Review Group

Environmental Management System

Canary Wharf Estate including Heron Quays, Riverside South and North Quay
European Union

Exemplar Developments LLP

Enterprise Zone Allowances

F Marc de Lachariere

Fitch Ratings Limited

Floating Rate Notes

Financial Reporting Standard 25 (Financial Instruments Disclosure and
Presentaiion)

Fair Value Through Profit and Loss

The company, its wholly owned subsidianies and Canary Wharf Group
Her Majesty's Revenue and Customs

HighSpeed Office Limited

Hypo Real Estate Bank International Limited

International Accounting Standards

International Accounting Standard 11 ‘Construction Contracts’
International Accounting Standard 17 ‘Leases

International Accounting Standard 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and
Measurement’

international Financial Reporting Interpretations Comimittee
International Financial Reporting Standards

International Financial Reporting Standard 8 'Operating Segments’
Knight Frank LLP, Property Consuliants

London Borough of Tower Hamtets

The London Organising Committee of the Olympic Games Limited
Milhon

Morgan Stanley & Co Limited including all related funds, eniities and associates
Morgan Stanley Real Estate Fund IV International GP LLC and Morgan Stanley
European Real Estate Special Situations 11 Offshore inc

Morgan Stanfey Bank International Limited

Morgan Stanley Mortgage Services Limited

Morgan Staniey Real Estate Fund V
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Songbird Estates plc

Def|n|t|ons continued

NAV

NIA

NNNAV

Omega

OMR

Provision of Services Agreement

S&P

SAL

Savills

SFL

SG Shares
Skadden
Songbird toan
sq ft

TFL

Treasury Shares
Trust

UK GAAF
VAT

WWLP

Net Asset Value

Net Internal Area

Trple Net Asset Value

Omega Land BV

Open Market Rent

A provision of services agreement between the company and
Canary Wharf Group

Standard & Poors

Songbird Acquisition Limsted

Savills Commercial Limited, Chartered Surveyors
Sengbird Finance Limited

SG Shares of 10p

Skadden Arps Slate Meagher & Flom LLP

L.oan drawn down by either SAL or SFL

Square feet/square foot

Transport for London

B Shares acquired by any group entity and not cancelled
Canary Wharf Employees' Share Ownership Plan Trust
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
Value Added Tax

Wood Wharf Limited Partnership
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Members' Information

DIRECTORS

Non-executive directors

David Pntchard ndependent non-executive chamman
appointed o the board as a voting director In September
2005 This appointment I1s subject to annual ratification by
B shareholders at a class meeting to ke held on the same
day as the company'’s annual general meeting Currently a
director of Allled tnsh Banks plc and the Motability Tenth
Annwersary Trust  Previously non-executive deputy
charman of Lloyds TSB Group plc, charman of
Cheltenham & Gloucester plc and Morgan Stanley Card
Services {imited and director of the Dutton-Forshaw Motor
Company Limiied LCH Cleamet Group Limited and
Scotush Widows plc ™ + #

Brian Carr head of Morgan Stanley Real Estate Amercas
Investing A voting director appointed to the board in June
2006 by the Morgan Stanley shareholder group

Gabriela Gryger a Morgan Stanley real estate executive
aciive n the UK and Central and Eastern European
investment business for the MSREF and Special Situations
Funds A voting director appointed 1o the board in June
2006 by the Morgan Stanley shareholder group

Phiip Lader formerly US Ambassador to Court of St
James's a member of President Chnton's Cabinet and
White House Deputy Chref of Staff A lawyer, he 1s currently
a senior adviser to Morgan Stanley, non-executive
charman of WPP Group plc and a dwector of Lloyds of
London, Marathon Oil, AES Rusal and RAND
Corporations A voiing director appointed to the board 1n
June 2006 by the Morgan Stanley shareholder group

Sam Levinson adwviser 1o the Glick entities and managing
director of Levinson Capital Management LLC, where he
oversees Investments for a private equity fund Serves as a
member of the board of Optical Medrcal In¢ and Coleman
Cable Inc A voting director appointed to the board in April
2004 by the Glick shareholder group

Gavin MacDonald head of Global Mergers and
Acguisitions and vice chairman of Morgan Stanley
Invesiment Banking and a managing director of Morgan
Stanley A voting director appointed to the board in May
2004 by the Morgan Stanley shareholder group *

Alexander Midgen a managing diecior of NM
Rothschild & Sons Limited and global co-head of the real
estate adwisory business for Rothschild’s Invesiment
Banking Division A voting director appointed 1o the board
in May 2004 by the Glick shareholder group ™ + #

Songbird Estates plc

Brian Niles managing drector and deputy head of
European Investing — Morgan Stanley Real Estate and a
director of Multi Corporation BV A voting director
appointed to the hoard in Sepiember 2007 by the Morgan
Stanley shareholder group * + #

Richard Powers co-head of the Real Estate Prnincipal
Investment Area for Goldman Sachs in Eurcpe and a
managing director at Goidman Sachs A non voung
director appointed to the board n May 2004 by the
Whitehall shareholder group #

Timothy Roberts joined British Land in 1997, becomng
joint head of Asset Management in 2002, and has specific
responsibility for the office secior of Briish Land's portfolio
An executive director of The Brtish Land Company PLC
since July 2006 A voting director apponted to the board
in June 2007 by the BL shareholder group

" Auchi Commitiee
+ Annournicement Comnuttee
# Exscutive Commuttee
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Songbird Estates ple

Mem beI’S’ | ﬂfOl’maUOﬂ continued

Shareholder Enguines

All enguines relating to holdings of shares in the
company should be addressed 1o the company s
registrars

Capita Registrars

The Registry

34 Bechenham Road

Beckenham

Kent BR3 4TU

Teleghone 0871 664 0300*
Facsimile 020 8639 2342

E-mail ssd@capitaregistrars com
Website www capiaregistrass com

“Calis currently cost 100 per minute plus nelwork exras

Other Enquiries

If you would like more information about Sorngbird
Estates ple please contact John Garwood,
Company Secretary

Registered Office and Registered Number

One Canada Square

Canary Wharf

London E14 5AB

Telephone 020 7477 1000
Facsimile 020 7477 1001
Registered Number 5043352
Website www songbirdestates com

ADVISERS
Auditors

Deloitie & Touche LLP
Hill House

1 Little New Street
London EC4A 3TR

Bankers

The Royal Bank of Scotland Plc
London Caorporate SC

PO Box 39952

212 Devonshire Square
London EC2M 4XJ

Broker

JP Morgan Cazencve
20 Moorgate
London EC2R 60A

Financial PR Consulftants

Tulehan Communications Group Ltd
Sixth floor

Kildare House

3 Dorset Rise

London EC4Y 8EN

Nominated Adviser

KPMG Corporate Finance
8 Salisbury Square
L.ondon EC4Y BBB

Solicitors

Weil, Gotshal & Manges
One South Place
London EC2M 2WG
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